
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Paul Bateman, Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422699523

E-mail: democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 26 November 2019

Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 4 DECEMBER 2019 AT 7.00 PM

THE RIDGEWAY, THE BEACON, PORTWAY, WANTAGE, OX12 9BY

Members of the Committee:
Bob Johnston (Chair)
Val Shaw (Vice-Chair)
Jerry Avery
Ron Batstone

Eric Batts
Diana Lugova
Robert Maddison

Janet Shelley
Max Thompson

Substitutes Councillors
Paul Barrow, Dr
Nathan Boyd
Andy Cooke

Eric de la Harpe
Amos Duveen
Hayleigh Gascoigne

Simon Howell
Mike Pighills
Elaine Ware

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.

MARGARET REED
Head of Legal and Democratic 



2

1. Chairman's announcements  

To receive any announcements from the chairman, and general housekeeping 
matters.

2. Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

3. Minutes  (Pages 5 - 9)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the 
meeting held on 13 November 2019.

4. Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

5. Urgent business  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent.  

6. Public participation  

To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.  

Planning applications

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports 
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working 
file) and referenced by its application number.  These are available to view at the 
Council Offices (135 Milton Park, Milton) during normal office hours.

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting.



3

Summary index of applications

Site Address Proposal Application No Page.

7. J Curtis and 
Sons Ltd 
Thrupp Lane, 
Radley,  
Abingdon, 
OX14 3NG  

Variation of condition 1 - to allow 
permitted use of buildings A, C, D, F 
and G for a further period of 5 years 
on application ref P03/V1226/FUL. 
Variation of condition 1 of Approval 
P87/V1143/FUL (RAD/57/15) to allow 
the permitted uses of buildings A, C, 
D, F & G for a further 8-year period.

P18/V1704/FUL 10 - 34

8. Oakley 
Equestrian 
Centre, 
Faringdon Road 
A417, Field 
opposite 
Goosey Lane, 
Faringdon, SN7 
8PE  

Change of Use of the site to a 
commercial business for the pre-
training of race horses.  Erection of 16 
stables, w.c., hay barn and tack room, 
together with a sand gallop, horse 
walker and a temporary mobile home 
(as amended by additional 
information received from agent on 15 
and 22 April 2019). (As amended by 
additional information received 17 
June 2019) (As amended by 
additional Information received 15 
August 2019).

P19/V0626/FUL 35 - 47

9. Land to the rear 
of 89A-93 
Eynsham Road, 
Botley, Oxford, 
OX2 9DG  

Construction of 8 flats (5 x 1 bedroom 
and 3 x 2 bedroom) on three floors 
(amended plans received 17 July 
2019 to show amended site plan, car 
parking and bin storage, amended 
materials, and additional arboricultural 
information).

P19/V0424/FUL 48 - 62

10. 5 Toynbee 
Close, North 
Hinksey, 
Oxford, OX2 
9HW  

Erection of a new building containing 
2no. x 2-bedroom flats to the rear of 5 
Toynbee Close, demolition of car port 
and outbuilding to facilitate access 
from Toynbee Close with provision of 
parking with bin and cycle stores. 
Demolition of existing dwelling house 
and erection of a 2 storey building 
containing 1no. x 3 bedroom flat and 
2no. x 1 bedroom flats with provision 
of parking with bin and cycles stores 
(amended and amplified by plans 
received 30th August 2019 & 7th 
October 2019)

P19/V1512/FUL 63 - 86



4

11. Army Rowing 
Club, Wilsham 
Road,  
Abingdon, 
OX14 5LD  

Demolish existing detached club room 
and store building. Form new 
detached club room and rowing boat 
store (amended drawings to show 
revised boat store, club room and car 
parking/cycle provision received 1 
October 2019). (Revised flood risk 
assessment received 17 October 
2019).

P19/V1445/FUL 87 - 98

Exclusion of the public

To consider whether to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting 
for the following item of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access 
to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that: 
(i) it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 

1-7 Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and 
(ii) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 

disclosing the information.  



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 13 November 2019 Pl.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Planning Committee
held on Wednesday, 13 November 2019 at 
7.00 pm
in the The Ridgeway, The Beacon, Portway, 
Wantage, OX12 9BY

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 

Members: Councillors Bob Johnston (Chair), Val Shaw (Vice-Chair), Jerry Avery, 
Ron Batstone, Diana Lugova, Robert Maddison, Janet Shelley and Max Thompson

Officers: Paul Bateman, Adrian Butler, Lewis Dixey and Emily Hamerton and Adrian 
Butlerton

Also present: Councillor Andy Foulsham

Number of members of the public: 14

Pl.53 Chairman's announcements 

The chairman outlined the emergency evacuation arrangements and the procedure for the 
meeting.

Pl.54 Apologies for absence 

Councillor Eric Batts sent his apologies.

Pl.55 Minutes 

With reference to minute P.151 (P19/V0184/HH - 51 Yarnells Hill, OX2 9BE), the 
committee agreed that the following wording would be added; “concern was raised by 
several committee members about the height of the path and the harmful impact this 
would have on the next door neighbours’ amenity”.

RESOLVED: to adopt the minutes (as amended above) of the committee meeting held on 
23 October 2019 as a correct record and agree that the chair signs them as such.

Pl.56 Declarations of interest 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 13 November 2019 Pl.2

Councillor Robert Maddison declared that in respect of application P19/V1838/FUL, 225 
South Avenue, Abingdon, he was a resident of that road but was not acquainted with the 
owners of the subject property.

Pl.57 Urgent business 

There was no urgent business.

Pl.58 Public participation 

The list of registered speakers was tabled at the meeting.

Pl.59 P19/V0910/FUL - Hanney Nurseries, Steventon Road, East Hanney, 
OX12 0HS 

The committee considered application P19/V0910/FUL for the residential development of 
46 market and affordable dwellings with associated landscaping and infrastructure at 
Hanney Nurseries, Steventon Road, East Hanney, OX12 0HS.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting.  

Officer Updates:

• Officers reported that the table on page 22 and 23, indicating the applicant’s 
proposed affordable housing mix, incorrectly showed one 3 - bedroom 5 persons 
house for shared ownership. The correct figure was one 3 - bedroom 6 persons 
house for shared ownership.  It was confirmed that the Council’s Housing Officer 
was satisfied with this.

• A revised Biodiversity Impact Calculator had been received, which the Council’s 
Countryside Officer had reviewed and accepted.

• In respect of proposed condition 4 and the first Informative on page 10, the number 
of offsetting Biodiversity Units was to be reduced from 11 to 6.  The total value of 
the units had been correspondingly reduced from £105,600 to £57,600.

Councillor David Kirk, representing East Hanney Parish Council, spoke in support of the 
application.

Tammy Deshprabhu, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.

Andrew Barron, the applicant, spoke in support of the application.

In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that:

• The development’s access was to be moved to the west, with the hedgerow to the 
east and trees to the west to be retained.

• The proposed roads were wide enough to permit emergency vehicles and proposed 
parking exceeded the amount required by the parking standards. The planning 
authority did not possess the powers to control on - street parking.

• With reference to a plan, officers identified to the committee, the various locations of 
the 20 unallocated parking spaces.

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 13 November 2019 Pl.3

• The Oxfordshire County Council, as highway authority, had no objection to the 
proposals.

• The agreed number of affordable dwellings would be secured by a Section 106 
Agreement with the applicant.

• After consultation with the council’s drainage officer and the Lead Local Flood 
Authority, officers were satisfied that the development would not be exposed to 
unreasonable flood risk or increase flood risk elsewhere.

• In respect of Condition 10 (Landscaping Scheme to be approved), this could be 
amended to include a hedgerow between the entrance road and the western 
boundary, and the provision of dog waste and litter bins.

• If members considered it necessary, a condition could be imposed requiring the 
provision of swift bricks on the dwellings; the locations and number (a minimum of 
six as suggested by the Committee Chair) to be agreed. 

• The provision of cycle parking at the site entrance, which was the proposed location 
of a bus stop, was not necessary or justified in mitigating the impact of the proposal.

• Oxfordshire County Council was securing funds from this proposal and other 
housing developments in the locality to provide a bus service along Steventon 
Road, but this service was not currently in place.

A motion moved and seconded, to approve the application, and subject to the following 
additions, was declared carried on being put to the vote:

• Condition 10 to be revised to include the provision of a hedgerow between the 
entrance road to the site and the western boundary, and dog waste and litter bins to 
be agreed.

• A condition be added requiring the provision of a minimum of six swift bricks with 
the locations to be agreed.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P19/V0910/FUL, delegated to 
the head of planning, subject to:

1. A Section 106 agreement being entered into to secure contributions towards local 
infrastructure, management of public open spaces and to secure affordable 
housing; and

2. Conditions as follows:

1. Development to commence within three years.
2. Approved plans.

Pre-Commencement Conditions

3. Tree protection as submitted to be implemented.
4. Biodiversity off setting.
5. Surface water drainage scheme to be agreed.
6. Strategy and programme for ground water monitoring.
7. Wheel washing facilities during construction.

Pre-Occupancy or Other Stage Conditions

8. Proposals to maintain, clear and desilt watercourses within or along 
boundaries of the site to be agreed.

9. Connecting paths to adjacent sites to be provided within the application site.

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 13 November 2019 Pl.4

10. Landscaping scheme to be approved.
11. Plan of properties including Swift bricks to be submitted and approved.
12. Play equipment to be agreed.
13. Boundary treatments in accordance with approved plans.
14. Site access details to be approved.
15. Vision splays - 2.4m x 43m – to be provided.
16. Road and footway construction to each dwelling to be provided before each 

occupation.
17. Parking and turning spaces for each dwelling to be provided prior to 

occupation of each plot.

Post Occupancy Monitoring and Management Conditions

18. Landscaping implementation.
19. Construction hours – 8.00 to 18.00 Monday to Friday 8.00 to 13.00 Saturday. 

No works on Sunday or bank holidays.
20. Permitted development rights removal – extensions, dormer windows, 

outbuildings.
21. Retention of garages.
22. No street lighting.

Informatives

1. Several Biodiversity Offsetting providers can deliver Offsetting agreements in 
Oxfordshire, including the Trust for Oxfordshire’s Environment (TOE) -
https://www.trustforoxfordshire.org.uk/biodiversity-offsetting and the Environment 
Bank Ltd. The number of Biodiversity Units required to offset this permission is 6, 
with a value of £57,600.

2. Broadband provision.
3. Land drainage consent needed for any works to watercourses or ditches.

Pl.60 P19/V1835/FUL - 225 South Avenue, Abingdon, OX14 1QT 

Councillor Robert Maddison declared that in respect of application P19/V1835/FUL, he 
was a resident of that road but was not acquainted with  the owners of the subject 
property.

The committee considered application P19/V1835/FUL, to construct a 3-bedroom semi-
detached dwelling, which will be connected to the existing property on the site. The new 
dwelling is to mirror the existing dwelling in size and appearance, at 225 South Avenue 
Abingdon, OX14 1QT.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting.

Councillor Andy Foulsham, a representative of Abingdon on Thames Town Council, spoke 
objecting to the application.

Luke Kenton, the agent, spoke in support of the application.

In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that:

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 13 November 2019 Pl.5

 The pebble dashing would be identical on both properties.
 The development conformed with the NPPF, Vale of White Horse Local Plan Part 1 

and Part 2 and Design Guide SPD.
 The Oxfordshire County Council had no objection to the parking and highways 

proposals.
 Under the General Permitted Development Order the property could become a 

House of Multiple Occupation, however the property would have to be built and 
occupied first as approved before benefitting from Permitted Development Rights.

A motion moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P19/V1835/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions:

Standard Conditions:

1. TL1 - Time limit - Full Application (Full)
2. Approved plans

Pre-commencement Conditions:

3. MC25 - Drainage Details (Surface Water) (Full)
4. MC26 - Drainage Details (Foul Water) (Full)

Pre-occupation condition:

5.  HY7[I] - Car Parking (Full)

Compliance Conditions:

6.  MC3 - Materials in Accordance with App.(Full)
7.  HY19 - No Drainage to Highway (Full)
8.  ID18 - Discharge of Dust/Fumes (Full)
9.  ID17[I] - Noise (Full)

 

The meeting closed at 8.05 pm

Page 9



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/V1704/FUL
SITE J Curtis and Sons Ltd Thrupp Lane 

Radley Abingdon, OX14 3NG
PARISH RADLEY
PROPOSAL Variation of condition 1 - to allow 

permitted use of buildings A, C, D, F and 
G for a further period of 5 years on 
application ref P03/V1226/FUL.

Variation of condition 1 of Approval 
P87/V1143/FUL (RAD/57/15) to allow the 
permitted uses of buildings A, C, D, F & 
G for a further 8 year period.

WARD MEMBER(S) Bob Johnston
Diana Lugova

APPLICANT J Curtis and Sons Ltd
OFFICER Martin Deans

RECOMMENDATION
Refusal of Planning Permission for the following reasons:

The buildings are unauthorised, being temporary in nature, and the 
original justification for their construction, to support mineral extraction, 
is no longer considered to apply. The continued use of the buildings, and 
their associated traffic, represents inappropriate development in the green 
belt for which no very special circumstances are considered to exist, and 
is in conflict with the aim of promoting the area for nature conservation 
and quiet recreation, As such, the proposal is contrary to Policy CP13 of 
the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1, Policy PP.8 of the Radley 
Neighbourhood Plan, and to the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Planning Practise Guidance.

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application comes to Committee at the request of the local councillor, Bob 

Johnston. The application site is a collection of buildings and associated 
hardstandings, situated to the south east of Abingdon, within Radley parish 
and the Oxford Green Belt. Parts of the site are also within flood zones 2 and 
3. The area has a long history of use for sand and gravel extraction dating 
back to the 1950s in connection with two holdings owned by J. Curtis & Sons 
Ltd and H. Tuckwell & Sons Ltd respectively. The buildings on the application 
site are historically associated with the J. Curtis & Sons operation, and were 
erected originally as ancillary buildings to the extraction operations, but have 
been used for purposes unconnected with extraction since at least the mid-
1970’s.

Page 10

Agenda Item 7

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V1704/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

1.2 A site plan of the buildings is below.

1.3 Access to the land is via Thrupp Lane which is a narrow rural lane that follows 
a winding course of approximately 1.4 km to link the application site with the 
village of Radley to the north. Thrupp Lane provides access to a number of 
residential properties as well as the Radley Lakes Nature Reserve, in addition 
to the Curtis and Tuckwell sites. It also forms part of the SUSTRANS National 
Cycle Network. 

1.4 Since 1982 the buildings and hardstandings on the application site have 
enjoyed the benefit of a series of temporary planning permissions granted by 
the Vale for various commercial purposes, pending the cessation of the use of 
the wider land holding for mineral extraction purposes. Originally, temporary 
permissions were granted for a period of 5 years only (i.e. from 1982 to 1987). 
In 1992 a planning inspector granted temporary permission on appeal for a 
further period of 10 years (i.e. from1992 to 2002). This temporary permission 
was renewed for a further 8 years in 2003

1.5 This last temporary permission lapsed on 31 August 2011 at which time the 
continued use of the site for these various commercial purposes constituted a 
breach of condition 1 of planning permission P03/01126/FUL. This ongoing 
breach of planning control remains vulnerable to enforcement action under 
section 171B of the Town and Country Planning Act until 31 August 2021. 

1.6 An application to renew planning permission for 5 years was withdrawn in 
2017 due to lack of traffic information. The current application includes traffic 

Page 11



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

information and seeks to renew permission for the buildings for a further 8 
years.

1.7 Planning for minerals extraction falls within the remit of Oxfordshire County 
Council (OCC). The whole Curtis site is currently the subject of a Review of 
Old Mineral Permission (ROMP) by OCC. The ROMP process enables OCC 
to periodically review the planning permissions and conditions for extraction 
operations, which may have a life of several decades, to ensure they comply 
with changing environmental controls and best practise.

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 Full versions of the comments made on the planning application can be seen 

on the application pages of the council’s website www,whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Radley Parish Council Object for the following reasons:
 The justification for the buildings no longer 

exists so their use causes harm to the 
green belt

 Significant changes to material 
circumstances since the last appeal on 
the buildings in 1992

 Danger to users of Thrupp Lane
 Contrary to the aims of the Radley 

Neighbourhood Plan
 Misleading documentation

Neighbours / Local 
Groups

10 submissions making objections on the 
following grounds

 Danger from HGV traffic
 No justification for the buildings to remain
 The buildings add a significant level of 

traffic to the total traffic numbers
 Oxfordshire County Council and the Vale 

should adopt a joint approach to the site
 Contrary to the Neighbourhood Plan
 Inaccurate information

Oxfordshire County 
Council Minerals 
Planning

No objection subject to short term temporary 
permission

Oxfordshire County 
Council Highways

No objections

Countryside Officer No objections

Page 12



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

Contaminated Land 
Officer

No objections

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P16/V2157/FUL - Other Outcome (17/07/2017)

Variation of Condition 1 attached to planning permission 03/01126/FUL to allow 
the permitted use of buildings A, C, D, F and G for a further period of 5 years 
(from the date of this application).

P15/V2710/CM - Approved (02/12/2015)
Scoping opinion for periodic review of mineral permission.

P11/V1859 - Refused (04/11/2015)
Variation of Condition 1 of Planning Permission 03/01126/FUL, to allow the 
permitted uses of buildings A, C, D, F & G for a further period of 15 years.

P03/V1126 - Approved (28/08/2003)
Variation of condition 1 of Approval RAD/57/15 to allow the permitted uses of 
buildings A, C, D, F & G for a further 8 year period.

P87/V1112 - Approved (10/12/1992)
use of land & buildings for class B1 business purposes

P90/V1180 - Refused (14/11/1991)
Retention and continued use of existing buildings for Class B1 and B2 uses

P87/V1143 - Refused (14/11/1991)
Use of land and buildings for class B1 business purposes

P84/V1034 - Approved (02/11/1984)
Relocation of building for Dore & Wood

P82/V0866/COU - Approved (29/11/1982)
Change of use of existing premises for the use of Pallet Productions Ltd for 
light industrial engineering

P82/V0861/COU - Approved (29/11/1982)
Change of use of existing premises, for the use of Messrs R Cherry & Sons 
Ltd, for repairs to light commercial vehicles.

P82/V0862/COU - Approved (29/11/1982)
Change of use of existing premises, for the use of Messrs Marsh Plant Ltd for 
light industrial engineering.

P82/V0865/COU - Approved (29/11/1982)
Change of use of existing premises for the use of G & N Auto Repairs Ltd for 
motor vehicle repairs

P82/V0864/COU - Approved (29/11/1982)
Change of use of existing premises, for the use of Messrs Dore & Wood Ltd. 

Page 13

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/V2157/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/V2710/CM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P11/V1859
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P03/V1126
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P87/V1112
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P90/V1180
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P87/V1143
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P84/V1034
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P82/V0866/COU
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P82/V0861/COU
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P82/V0862/COU
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P82/V0865/COU
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P82/V0864/COU


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

for light agricultural machinery repairs, sales and maintenance.

P82/V0863/COU - Approved (29/11/1982)
Change of use of existing premises, for the use of Messrs Flameless Furnaces 
Ltd for light industrial engineering

P76/V0668/COU - Refused (27/09/1976)
Temporary use of building for maintenance of coaches, building at J. Curtis and 
sons Ltd. premises, Radley (off Thrupp Lane)

P74/V0628 - Approved (13/12/1974)
Retention of repair workshop for company vehicles and machinery off Thrupp 
Lane, Radley Oxfordshire

P69/V5336 - Refused (20/01/1970)
Residential development. Planning Application History

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 The development is not of a scale that requires an EIA

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 The main issues are considered to be as follows:

 The History of the site
 The Review of Minerals Permission (ROMP)
 The relationship of the proposal with green belt policy and the Radley 

Neighbourhood Plan

5.2 The History of the Site
The Curtis site has a long and complex planning history dating back to the 
original planning permission for extraction on part of the total site in 1954. This 
permission included the condition that:

“All plant, buildings, foundations and machinery shall be removed from the site 
by the operator at such time as the Local Planning Authority, after consultation 
with the operator is satisfied that they are no longer required for the purpose of 
working gravel”. 

The buildings that are the subject of the planning application appear to have 
been erected under permitted development rights associated with the mineral 
extraction.

5.3 In 1978 it became evident to the Vale and to OCC that various unauthorised 
commercial uses had commenced in buildings on the application site. In 1982 a 
series of temporary planning permissions were granted on the buildings for 5 
years. In 1992 the Vale issued 6 enforcement notices to require the commercial 
uses to cease within 5 years. An appeal into the notices resulted in dismissal 
and the granting of a 10-year temporary permission for commercial uses (ref 
P90/1180). A copy of the decision letter, which summarises the site history and 
arguments surrounding the legality of the buildings, is attached in Appendix 1.

Page 14

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P82/V0863/COU
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P76/V0668/COU
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P74/V0628
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P69/V5336


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

5.4 It is evident from this history that the buildings have been put to uses not 
connected with gravel extraction for approximately 45 years, well over half of 
the time since the first planning permission for gravel extraction (which is 65 
years). The following decisions are also of relevance. In 2002 Thrupp Lane was 
designated part of Route 5 on the SUSTRANS national cycle route. On 3 
September 2007 the council granted a certificate of lawful use 
(P06/V1318/LDE) for the use of the concrete batching plant on the Curtis site 
by Tarmac as a permanent, stand-alone plant. In 2008 the Earth Trust were 
granted a lease for Thrupp Lake and have since managed it as a recreational 
resource. In October 2018 the Radley Neighbourhood Plan was made, which 
contains a policy and a community action for the Radley Lakes area.

5.5 The Review of Minerals Permission (ROMP)
On 9 October 2015 a review notice was served on land under the control of 
Curtis & Sons Ltd, including the application site, giving until 31 October 2016 
for the submission of a ROMP application and necessary accompanying EIA. 
No application was received, so the site entered automatic suspension on 1 
November 2016. A site in suspension cannot resume extraction until a ROMP 
application and EIA have been approved. A two-year period is given to enable 
an application to be submitted, after which it is open to the minerals planning 
authority to consider whether extraction has permanently ceased. The two-year 
period expired without an application by the owner, and on 9 September 2019 
OCC resolved that extraction had permanently ceased and that a formal 
Prohibition Order should be served.

5.6 Evidence indicates that extraction of material from the Curtis site ceased some 
25 years ago, at around 1995. During the ROMP process, the owner has 
maintained it is the intention to re-commence extraction from the site once 
extraction from another site in his ownership, Sutton Wick near Drayton, has 
ceased. However, government guidance on this issue, in the Planning Practice 
Guidance on Minerals, paragraph 210, states that:

“There are unlikely to be many cases in which, after two years’ suspension, the 
mineral planning authority would not be acting rationally in assuming that 
working had permanently ceased.”

The Prohibition Order needs the approval of the Secretary of State, and the 
owner has a right of appeal against its imposition. However, at this time, the 
future of the Curtis site for mineral extraction is in significant doubt.

5.7 Leaving this aside, and taking up the owner’s argument with regard to the 
Sutton Wick site, there are two separate permissions for extraction there which 
expire in 2022 and 2027 respectively. Therefore, his assertion is that extraction 
at Thrupp Lane would re-commence approximately 30 years after it ceased, 70 
years after the original planning permission at Thrupp Lane, and 50 years after 
the buildings started use for purposes completely unconnected with the 
extraction. Extraction from the site could then go on for another 20 years or 
more, meaning the “temporary” buildings will have been in use for purposed 
completely unconnected to the extraction for 70 or more years.

Page 15



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

5.8 This opens the risk that, by this time, an argument will be made that the 
“temporary” buildings have been in existence for so long, and unconnected at 
all to the mineral extraction, that they have effectively become stand-alone, 
permanent buildings, and that there will be no greater impact on the green belt 
in allowing them to remain, or to allow replacements.

5.9 The effect of a successful Prohibition Order is to bring forward in time the 
process of restoring the extraction site to more suitable uses. In its response to 
the planning application, OCC considers the buildings on the application site 
will be removed as part of this restoration process, and does not consider that 
the granting of a short-term temporary permission will conflict with a restoration 
scheme. For this reason, OCC does not object to the planning application on 
minerals planning grounds. However, the significant doubt that now exists over 
the continuation of gravel extraction does have a direct bearing on the 
justification for the buildings in terms of green belt policy, which will be 
examined next.

5.10 Relationship with Green Belt Policy and the Radley Neighbourhood Plan
The existing buildings and hardstanding areas occupied by the various 
industrial uses, which are the subject of the current application, are themselves 
subject to conditions requiring their demolition and removal when the site 
ceases to be used for extraction purposes. The retention of the buildings and 
related hardstandings was only ever intended for a temporary period, due in 
large to their adverse impact on the green belt. The retention and use of these 
buildings and related hardstandings for any length of time beyond that intended 
by the above conditions, must therefore be regarded as ‘inappropriate 
development’ in the green belt and harmful to the openness and character of 
green belt and contrary to the purposes of including land within the Green Belt 
(see policy CP13 of the local plan).

5.11 It is clear that almost all of the buildings have not been used for purposes 
connected with gravel extraction since the mid-1970’s. At the time of the 
enforcement appeal decisions in 1992, it was estimated that extraction would 
continue until 2008. In fact, according to evidence, extraction ceased around 
1995, and there has been no extraction for approximately 25 years.

5.12 In light of the decision by OCC to issue a Prohibition Order, officers consider 
the ‘very special circumstances’ that previously justified the temporary use of 
these buildings and hardstandings for industrial purposes and the retention of 
the buildings themselves no longer exist. This factor was crucial to the 
acceptance of the temporary use of the buildings by the inspector in the 
enforcement appeals in 1992. Their continued use in the absence of mineral 
extraction causes harm to the openness of the green belt and is contrary to the 
purposes of including land in the green belt. It is therefore contrary to policy 
CP13 of the local plan and government guidance contained in the NPPF aimed 
at protecting the openness and character of the green belt.

5.13 Officers are also mindful of the local evidence regarding the potential for traffic 
conflict in the use of Thrupp Lane. Policy PP.8 of the Radley Neighbourhood 

Page 16



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

Plan promotes the Radley Lakes area as one for nature conservation and quiet 
recreation, compatible with its green belt designation. As the buildings 
themselves are only temporary, so too are the vehicle movements associated 
with them. The noise and other forms of pollution associated with the 
movement of commercial vehicles along Thrupp Lane represents a further 
erosion of the character of the area, and the removal of these vehicles will only 
represent an enhancement.

5.14 If the current application is refused, attention then turns to the businesses that 
occupy the buildings. Enforcement policy requires that negotiations take place 
with these businesses to allow them time to re-locate and thus continue to 
provide employment. This process of finding suitable alternative sites and of re-
locating could take some time, and officers consider it is prudent for the local 
planning authority to start this process relatively soon, to provide a reasonable 
time-frame for the ultimate removal of the buildings and hardstandings. The 
enforcement action horizon for the current unauthorised use of the buildings in 
breach of the last temporary planning permission is 31 August 2021.

6.0 CONCLUSION AND PLANNING BALANCE
6.1 The proposal, to continue the temporary use of the buildings and hardstandings 

for commercial uses unconnected with gravel extraction, does enable the 
provision of employment, to which weight needs to be attached. This weight is 
tempered by the fact that the buildings have clearly been subject to temporary 
permissions, and the fact that protecting the employment would be a key aim of 
any enforcement action, which should mitigate the effects. With the recent 
decision of OCC, that gravel extraction on the Curtis site has permanently 
ceased, the “very special circumstances” justification for retaining he buildings 
has disappeared, so making the buildings inappropriate development in green 
belt terms. The buildings have not been used for purposes associated with 
gravel extraction for approximately 40 years in any event. The traffic and other 
activity associated with the uses also harms the character of the area. Officers 
attach maximum weight to the conflicts with green belt policy and to the aims of 
promoting nature conservation and quiet recreation. Consequently, it is 
considered that the harm to the green belt and the character of the area 
outweigh the potential risk to existing employment, and that the application 
should be refused.

The following planning policies have been taken into account:

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1

Policy CP13 – Green Belt

Radley Neighbourhood Plan

Policy PP.8 – Radley Lakes

Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Core Strategy 2017

Page 17



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

National Planning Policy Framework

Planning Practise Guidance

Minerals Planning National Guidance

Equalities Act 2010 
The proposal has been assessed against section 149 of the Equalities Act. It is 
considered that no identified group will suffer discrimination as a result of this 
proposal

Human Rights Act, 1998 
The application has been assessed against Schedule 1, Part 1, Article 8, and 
against Schedule 1, Part 2, Article 1 of the Human Rights Act, 1998. The harm 
to individuals has been balanced against the public interest and the officer 
recommendation is considered to be proportionate.

Author: Martin Deans
Email: martin.deans@southandvale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01235 422600

Page 18

mailto:martin.deans@southandvale.gov.uk


Appendix 1

Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

APPLICATION NO. P19/V0626/FUL
SITE Oakley Equestrian Centre Faringdon 

Road A417 Field opposite Goosey Lane 
Faringdon, SN7 8PE

PARISH WEST CHALLOW
PROPOSAL Change of Use of the site to a 

commercial business for the pre-training 
of race horses. Erection of 16 stables, 
wc, hay barn and tack room together with 
a sand gallop, horse walker and a 
temporary mobile home. (As amended 
by additional information received from 
agent on 15 and 22 April 2019). (As 
amended by additional information 
received 17 June 2019) (As amended by 
additional Information received 15 
August 2019).

WARD MEMBER(S) Paul Barrow
APPLICANT James Connors
OFFICER Sarah Green

RECOMMENDATION
Planning Permission be granted subject to the following conditions and 
the completed Section 106 agreement;

Standard 
1. Commencement 3 years - Full Planning Permission
2. Approved plans 

Pre- Commencement
3. Existing close board fencing to be removed
4. Access and vision splays to be provided

Pre- Occupation
5. Surface water drainage in accordance with details
6. Foul water drainage in accordance with details

Compliance
7. Materials in accordance with details
8. Landscaping in accordance with details
9. External lighting in accord with details to be agreed
10.Recommendations of preliminary Ecological Appraisal
11.Parking and turning areas provided

Page 35

Agenda Item 8

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/V0626/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

12.Mobile home occupation limited to person wholly engaged in 
equestrian business or any residential dependants of such person

13.Within 3 years of this permission or in the case the business 
ceases use, whichever occurs first, the mobile home shall be 
removed from the site

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 The application comes to committee because it is a major application and the 

parish council objects. 

1.2 The site is located off the A417 to the south west of Goosey in the open 
countryside. It is a long, more or less rectangular site which runs along the 
road. The access from the A417 is at the southern end. There is an existing 
hedgerow to the road which is gappy in places. Behind this a close boarded 
fence over 2m high has been erected and large wooden gates at the access 
installed without planning permission. A site location plan is provided below: 

1.3

1.4 Outline planning permission was granted in 2017 on the southern part of the 
site for 4 stables, a tack room and hay store for private use only. This 
application has not been implemented and no reserved matters have been 
received. Prior to this in 2001 permission was granted for an outdoor menage 
which has been constructed on the site.

1.5 On 29 March 2018 an injunction was served upon the site and applicant by the 
council. This injunction prevents a mobile home or other structures capable or 
intended for residential use to be brought on the site, putting the land to 
residential use or the spreading of hardcore or other material. 

1.6 The injunction however does not prevent the use of the land or operational 
development for which there is express planning permission for.  Therefore, 
planning applications can still be considered and determined.

Page 36



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

1.7 The proposal
This application seeks to change the use of the land to a commercial 
equestrian business for the pre-training of race horses. It would include 16 
stables, a hay and tack room, a horse walker and the creation of a sand gallop 
on the northern half of the site. It also seeks permission for a temporary single 
mobile home in connection with that business, citing it as essential. Extracts of 
the plans are attached at Appendix 1.

1.8 During the application process amended and additional information has been 
submitted to address the comments made by the relevant technical 
consultees. These matters will be covered in the report below.

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 This a summary of the final responses received from consultees and third 

parties to the application. The full responses can be viewed on the council 
website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

West Challow Parish 
Council 

Objection
 Parish council concerns of closed boarded 

fencing and leasing adjacent land for 
grazing appear to have been addressed.

 Still question the business viability.
 Assume dwelling will not be a temporary 

feature
Childrey Parish Council Objection

 Increased traffic safety risk on the A417 
and other local roads.

 Intention to lease adjacent 6 acres not 
been secured

 Issues with business plan
 Assume dwelling will not be temporary 

feature
Neighbour/third party 
representations (2)

Objection
 Open countryside and will be detrimental 

to area
 Not enough land to keep horses
 Access onto A417 not safe
 Increase in traffic
 Mobile home would become permanent
 Question viability of proposed business
 Location does not provide variety of 

training for horses
Drainage Engineer – Vale 
of White Horse

No objection 

Landscape Architect – 
Vale of White horse

No objection

Page 37

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

Countryside Officer – 
Vale of White Horse

No objection provided recommendations in 
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal are followed.

Oxfordshire County 
Council Highway 
Authority 

No objection subject to conditions on
- Access
- Visibility splays
- Turning space
- No surface water onto highway

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 VE18/87 - (enforcement investigation)

Construction of fence at 2m height adjacent to a highway and importation of 
earth fill without planning permission.

P17/V0996/O - Approved (09/08/2017)
Outline permission for four stables, a tack room and a hay store with some 
matters reserved (As amended by details received on 2 July 2017 and 8 July 
2017)

P04/V0793/LB - Approved (29/06/2004)
Straighten, clean and repaint milestone (WAFA04)

P04/V0791/LB - Approved (29/06/2004)
Straighten, clean and repaint milestone. (WAFA01)

P01/V0451/COU - Approved (26/07/2001)
Outdoor manege for equestrian use. Planning Application History

3.2 Pre-application History
P18/V2853/PEM - (05/12/2018)
Development of the site for a race horse pre-training business. Development 
involves the provision of 12 stables and tack room, sand gallop, horse walker, 
turnout paddocks, mobile home plus car parking.

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 The proposal does not fall within a category of development that would be 

subject to EIA.

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 The relevant planning considerations are the following:

 Principle
 Impact on the landscape
 Highways
 Residential Amenity
 Ecology
 CIL
 Conditions and S106 agreement

Page 38

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=VE18/87
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V0996/O
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P04/V0793/LB
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P04/V0791/LB
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P01/V0451/COU


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

5.2 Principle
Paragraph 83 of the NPPF supports the development of land based rural 
businesses. There is a long tradition of both recreational horse riding and the 
rearing and training of horses for the racehorse industry within the southern 
parts of the district. Policy DP12 of Local Plan Part 2 sets out the criteria the 
council will consider for equestrian developments. These are:

i. The proposed premises will have safe access from the site to public 
bridleways, gallops or other exercise areas in order to avoid conflict 
between horses and other public highway users, and

ii. The proposal does not unacceptably impact upon the site and the 
amenity of its neighbours.

5.3 Reading Agricultural Consultants (RAC) were instructed on behalf of the 
council to review the submitted business plan and the facilities proposed to 
assess whether they are realistic and reasonable. The consultants are 
experienced in this specialist area.

5.4 RAC state that overall the proposed equine facilities are reasonably necessary 
for their intended use and are of an appropriate size and design. The proposed 
sand gallop and horse walker are essential features for the exercising of horses 
and a number of grass paddocks are used for daily turnout.  The equine 
facilities proposed are therefore considered appropriate and sufficient for the 
proposed business use. RAC have also examined the economic sustainability 
of the proposed business and consider that the financial information provided 
and projected business plan appear sound. 

5.5 Mobile home
Along with the business the proposal includes temporary permission for a 
mobile home for a key worker to live at the site. The NPPF at paragraph 79 
refers to isolated dwellings in the countryside being avoided unless one of the 
specific criteria listed applies. One is if there is an essential need for a rural 
worker to live permanently at or near their place of work in the countryside.

5.6 Policy DP6 of Local Plan Part 2 specifically sets out criteria for rural workers 
dwellings. These include that it is essential for the business and the size and 
scale is commensurate with the needs of the enterprise (these are similar to 
the previous Annex A in the old PPS7). 

5.7 Following their assessment of the submitted business plan, RAC have 
concluded that there would be an essential need for a key worker to be on site 
for the proposed business to ensure the welfare of the horses is not 
compromised.

5.8 Policy DP6 also sets out that if a rural worker dwelling is essential to support a 
new rural enterprise it should be provided temporarily by a caravan, a wooden 
structure which can easily be dismantled, or other temporary accommodation 
for the first three years. It can be conditioned to ensure it is only occupied by a 
full time worker engaged in the business and to be removed from the site if the 
business ceases use within the three years. The applicant has also agreed to 
enter into a Section 106 legal agreement restricting the use of the land. Against 

Page 39



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

current adopted local plan policy, the principle of this proposal therefore fulfils 
all the criteria and should be supported.

5.9 Permanent permission would only be granted once it has been demonstrated 
that the business has been economically viable and sustainable for those three 
years. The applicant would need to apply for planning permission again where 
the development would be reviewed again at that time.

5.10 Impact on the landscape
The site is located in the open countryside. The site is bounded by the A417 
along its north eastern edge, from which there are limited views into the site. 
Public footpaths run across fields to the west but are not adjacent to the site. 

5.11 The landscape officer has reviewed the application and its potential impact 
upon the wider landscape. The site sits within the Bourton to Garford Upper 
Vale Landscape character area which is characterised by well maintained 
farmland and includes an even spread of scattered settlements, elsewhere 
there are scattered farmsteads. The proposal would introduce built 
development and result in a degree of change in the rural landscape, however 
buildings such as barns and stables are commonly found in the countryside 
and equestrian uses are countryside activities. In principle such a use is 
acceptable in the countryside. In line with policy CP44, measures should be 
sought to integrate it into the landscape and preserve and enhance the area.

5.12 Amended information has been submitted during the application on the 
proposed boundaries of the site. It is proposed to remove the existing close 
board fencing which is particularly out of character and harmful to the rural 
character. This can be conditioned and should be prior to any further 
development on site to remove this harm as soon as possible.

5.13 The central and southern boundaries will be planted with new mixed native 
species hedgerow. This will help to mitigate the visual impact of the built form 
from further afield. Gaps on the existing hedgerows to the west and east along 
the road will be infilled. It has been confirmed that the vision splays from the 
access will not require the removal of any of the existing trees along that 
boundary, although they will need to be trimmed. The submitted information 
has addressed the main concerns of the landscape officer.

5.14 The stables will be timber clad and typical design of equestrian buildings. The 
mobile home will be a timber structure which will ensure it is more in keeping 
with the other buildings. It has been moved closer to the stables and manage to 
try to keep the buildings and structures on the site more closely related.

5.15 In terms of external lighting it is proposed for there just to be security lighting on 
the stables operated by movement sensors. A condition can ensure that the 
council maintain control over any lighting.

5.16 Overall it is considered that the development would not result in undue harm to 
the visual amenity of the area. The design and scale of the buildings and 
structures proposed would be appropriate for their location and new soft 

Page 40



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

landscaping will be secured. It would therefore accord with policies CP37 and 
CP44 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1. 

5.17 Impact on highways
The proposal includes improving the existing access onto the A417 to 
adoptable standards. Additional information has been submitted to show that 
the vision splays can be achieved without loss of the hedgerow. There is no 
objection that the level of traffic generated by the proposal would result in harm 
to the highway. 

5.18 The highway officer originally objected based on the development encouraging 
or causing pedestrians to walk and cycle along the A417 where there is no 
suitable footway provision and their safety would be put at risk. 

5.19 In assessing this application considering needs to be given to the type of 
business and how workers and visitors would likely arrive at the site. Visitors 
dropping off or collecting horses would be arriving by vehicle. It is stated that 
there would be up to 4 workers. At least one of these would be resident in the 
mobile home. Given the nature of the proposed business, visitors to the site 
would be highly unlikely to be walking or cycling. Similarly, it is very likely that 
the employees at the site would travel by car. The highway authority has raised 
no objection to the increase in vehicles movements to the site. In weighing up 
the likely potential for harm officers consider the impact on the highway would 
be acceptable. The highway authority has also confirmed since reviewing the 
information that they do no longer hold an objection.

5.20 The access will need to be brought up to standard. This should be carried out 
before any other development takes place, to ensure that all construction traffic 
is able to safely access and exit the site. This can be conditioned. A Section 
278 agreement will need to be completed with the highway authority separately 
under the Highway Act.

5.21 Residential Amenity
The site is not near any residential properties that would be impacted by the 
business use. There will be no impact on amenity. The proposal would accord 
with policy DP23 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 2.

5.22 Ecology
Ecological surveys have been undertaken and have not identified any 
significant ecological constraints. The appraisal has a number of 
recommendations that include erecting bird boxes and where possible bat roost 
features. These can be conditioned.

5.23 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
CIL is applicable to residential development within the district. However, a 
mobile home is considered a use of land and is not a building. Under the CIL 
regulations therefore it would not be subject to CIL in this case. However, this 
may be different if in future a permanent dwelling were to be granted. 

Page 41



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

5.24 Conditions and S106 agreement
The most recent additional information submitted by the agent is in response to 
technical consultee comments and to provide information that would otherwise 
be sought by condition. This information included drainage plans, landscape 
details, and materials. The submitted information is considered acceptable. The 
conditions have been agreed with the agent. A section 106 legal agreement 
has been agreed and already completed. This will control the use of the land 
and mobile home.

6.0 CONCLUSION
6.1 Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in

accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.

6.2 The proposal has been assessed against the relevant adopted development 
plan policies. It is considered that the visual impact on the landscape is 
acceptable. The proposed business plan has been shown to be reasonable and 
it is essential for a temporary dwelling to be on site for animal welfare purposes. 
Officer are therefore satisfied that it would comply with the local plan policies.

6.3 It is not considered there are any other material considerations on planning 
grounds that would warrant refusing the application. Therefore, it is 
recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the list of 
conditions. 

The following planning policies have been taken into account:

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies
CP01  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP03  -  Settlement Hierarchy
CP33  -  Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP42  -  Flood Risk
CP44  -  Landscape
CP46  -  Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 policies
DP06  -  Rural Workers Dwellings
DP12  -  Rural Diversification and Equestrian Developments
DP16  -  Access
DP21  -  External Lighting
DP23  -  Impact of Development on Amenity

Neighbourhood Plan;
There is no neighbourhood plan for the area.

Other material considerations include government guidance, in particular:
- The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Page 42



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

- The Planning Policy Guidance (PPG)
- Vale of White Horse Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 
(March 2015)

Other Relevant Legislation and guidance
Human Rights Act 1998
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in 
the processing of the application and the preparation of this report.

Equality Act 2010
In determining this planning application, the Council has regard to its equality 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.

Case Officer: Sarah Green
Email planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
Tel 01235 422600

Page 43

mailto:planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


3260

2386

To
p 

of
 T

ru
ss

Bo
tto

m
 o

f T
ru

ss

Bl
ac

k O
nd

ul
in

e 
Ri

dg
e 

Ca
pp

in
g

Bl
ac

k O
nd

ul
in

e
UP

VC
 G

utt
er

in
g

Fr
on

t &
 re

ar
 e

le
va
tio

ns

Si
ng

le
 co

ur
se

 C
la

ss
 1

 b
ric

kw
or

k 
to

 
pe

rim
et

er
s 

an
d 

un
de

r p
ar
titi

on
 w

al
ls

 
(b

y 
ot

he
rs

)
Co

nc
re

te
 b

as
e 

on
 h

ar
d 

co
re

 
su

bfi
ll

(b
y 

ot
he

rs
), 

to
 s

ui
t s

ite
 co

nd
iti

on
s

88
m

m
 x 

38
m

m
 

CL
S 

w
al

l s
tr

ut
s a

t 
ce

nt
re

s
12

m
m

 p
ly

w
oo

d 
ki

ck
 b

oa
rd

 to
 

12
20

m
m

 h
ei

gh
t t

o 
ex

te
rn

al
 w

al
ls 

an
d 

fu
ll 

he
ig

ht
 to

 o
ne

 
sid

e 
of

 d
iv

id
in

g 
w

al
ls

18
00

m
m

 T
&

G 
lin

ed
  O

ve
rh

an
g

W
ith

 s
oft

w
oo

d 
su

pp
or

t p
os

ts

pu
rli

ns
 a

t 6
00

m
m

 c
en

tre
s

60
0 

x 
90

0m
m

 p
ar

t fi
xe

d 
lo

uv
er

 a
nd

 
ac

ry
lic

 w
in

do
w

 w
ith

 p
ro

te
cti

ve
 b

ar
s

Ex
cl

ud
in

g b
ric

ks

M
CB

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G 

LT
D 

20
19

 

O
AK

LE
Y 

EQ
U

ES
TR

IA
N

 C
EN

TR
E

CH
AL

LO
W

 O
XO

N
 S

N
7 

8P
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

AB
LE

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

S
SC

AL
E 

1:
10

0 
SE

E 
SC

AL
E 

RU
LE

   
  CL
IE

N
T:

 JA
M

ES
 C

O
N

N
O

RS
DR

AW
IN

G 
DA

TE
: 1

7 
M

AR
CH

 2
01

9
DR

AW
IN

G 
N

O
: O

EC
/P

P/
4B

/2

SC
AL

E 
1:

10
0

SO
U

TH
 F

AC
IN

G
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N

N
O

RT
H 

FA
CI

N
G

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

EA
ST

 F
AC

IN
G

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

EA
ST

 F
AC

IN
G

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

W
ES

T 
FA

CI
N

G
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N

W
ES

T 
FA

CI
N

G
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N

Page 44

SAV_SARGRE
Appendix 1



M
CB

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G 

LT
D 

20
19

 

O
AK

LE
Y 

EQ
U

ES
TR

IA
N

 C
EN

TR
E

CH
AL

LO
W

 S
N

7 
8P

E
PR

O
PO

SE
D 

M
O

BI
LE

 H
O

M
E 

PL
AN

 &
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
S 

RE
VI

SE
D 

SC
AL

E 
1:

10
0 

@
 A

3 
SE

E 
SC

AL
E 

RU
LE

   
  CL
IE

N
T:

 JA
M

ES
 C

O
N

N
O

RS
DR

AW
IN

G 
DA

TE
: 1

7 
JU

N
E 

20
19

DR
AW

IN
G 

N
O

 O
EC

/M
H/

5R
 

15
.2

4m
 / 

50
ft

6.1m / 20ft

LO
U

N
GE

KI
TC

HE
N

DI
N

IN
G

HA
LL

BE
DR

O
O

M
BA

TH
RO

O
M

N
O

RT
H 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N

SO
U

TH
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N

EA
ST

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

W
ES

T 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

FL
O

O
R 

PL
AN

BE
DR

O
O

M

Page 45

SAV_SARGRE_1
Appendix 1



M
CB

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G 

LT
D 

20
19

 

O
AK

LE
Y 

EQ
U

ES
TR

IA
N

 C
EN

TR
E

CH
AL

LO
W

  S
N

7 
8P

E
PR

O
PO

SE
D 

ST
AB

LE
 P

LA
N

S
SC

AL
E 

1:
10

0 
SE

E 
SC

AL
E 

RU
LE

   
  CL
IE

N
T:

 JA
M

ES
 C

O
N

N
O

RS
DR

AW
IN

G 
DA

TE
: 1

7 
M

AR
CH

 2
01

9
DR

AW
IN

G 
N

O
: O

EC
/P

P/
4A

/2

20
50

m
m

 

13
40

m
m

260mm

41
0m

m

36
00

m
m

36
00

m
m

36
00

m
m

36
00

m
m

36
00

m
m

36
50

m
m 13

40
m

m

St
ab

le
  D

oo
rs

 
W

in
do

w
s 

St
ab

le
 

St
ab

le
 

St
ab

le
 

St
ab

le
 

St
ab

le
 

St
ab

le
 

18
00

m
m

 

26
0m

m

Li
ne

d 
Ca

no
py

 w
ith

 p
os

ts
 a

nd
 b

ra
ci

ng
  

Cl
ea

r r
oo

f s
he

et
s

37
00

m
m

W
id

e 
Ca

no
py

 

Ar
ch

 W
ay

  

2050mm 

1340mm

36
00

m
m

36
00

m
m

36
00

m
m

36
00

m
m

36
00

m
m

54
00

m
m

36
00

m
m

18
00

m
m

22
60

m
m

 

13
40

m
m

22
60

m
m

 

13
40

m
m

22
60

m
m

 

13
40

m
m

22
60

m
m

 

13
40

m
m

2260mm 

1340mm

2260mm 

1340mm

2260mm 

1340mm

2260mm 

1340mm

St
ab

le
 

St
ab

le
 

St
ab

le
 

260mm

36
00

m
m

36
00

m
m

36
50

m
m

Fe
ed

 R
oo

m

Li
ne

d 
Ca

no
py

 w
ith

 p
os

ts
 a

nd
 b

ra
ci

ng
  

36
00

m
m

25
00

m
m

St
ab

le
 

St
ab

le
 

St
ab

le
 

St
ab

le
 

Ta
ck

 ro
om

U
nl

in
ed

 
Ha

y 
Ba

rn

12
50

0m
m

23
70

m
m

10
20

m
m

90
0m

m

20
00

m
m

17
00

m
m

25
00

m
m

17
00

m
m

17
10

m
m

2260mm 

1340mm

2260mm 

1340mm

2260mm 

1340mm

2260mm 

1340mm

2260mm 

1340mm

36
00

m
m

36
00

m
m

36
00

m
m

41
0m

m

54
00

m
m

36
00

m
m

O
pe

ni
ng

s

KE
Y

SC
AL

E 
1:

10
0

St
ab

le
 

Co
rn

er
 S

ta
bl

e 
Co

rn
er

 S
ta

bl
e 

18
00

m
m

60
0m

m

10
00

m
m

W
C

Page 46

SAV_SARGRE_2
Appendix 1



0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20

m

0m
95

434

00 05

0m
10

435

43495
0m

00 05

43510
0m

0m10191

15

20

25

0m30191

191100m

15

20

25

191300m

OS MasterMap 1250/2500/10000 scale
Sunday, February 3, 2019, ID: BW1-00774818
maps.blackwell.co.uk

1:500 scale print at A2, Centre: 435024 E, 191209 N

©Crown Copyright Ordnance Survey. Licence no. 100041041MCB PLANNING LTD 2019 

OAKLEY EQUESTRIAN CENTRE 
CHALLOW

LANDSCAPE & PLANTING PLAN
SCALE 1:500 @ A2 SEE SCALE RULE

     

CLIENT: JAMES CONNORS
DRAWING DATE: 17 JUNE 2019

DRAWING NO OEC/LP/1

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20

m

P
O

S
T

 &
 R

A
I L  F

E
N

C
E

WALKER

MENAGE

MOBILE 
HOME

PADDOCK

SAND GALLOP

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

P
O

S
T

 &
 R

A
I L

 F
E

N
C

E

P
O

S
T

 &
 R

A
I L

 F
E

N
C

E

P O S T  &  R A I L  F E N C E
GRASS

P
O

S
T

 &
 R

A
I L

 F
E

N
C

E

STABLES

STABLES

PARKING

SECURITY
LIGHTING

NEW TREES

EXISTING TREES

NEW HEDGEROW

KEY

Page 47

SAV_SARGRE_3
Appendix 1



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

APPLICATION NO. P19/V0424/FUL
SITE Land to the rear of 89A-93 Eynsham 

Road Botley Oxford, OX2 9DG
PARISH CUMNOR
PROPOSAL Construction of 8 flats (5 x 1 bedroom 

and 3 x 2 bedroom) on three floors 
(Amended plans received 17 July 2019 
to show amended site plan, car parking 
and bin storage, amended materials, and 
additional arboricultural information).

WARD MEMBER(S) Alison Jenner
Judy Roberts

APPLICANT Oxfordshire Community Land Trust
OFFICER Andy Heron

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that authority to grant planning permission is
delegated to the head of planning subject to:

1. A section 106 legal agreement being entered into to secure affordable
housing for local people in housing need.

2. Conditions summarised as follows:

Standard
1. Time limit
2. Approved plans

Prior to commencement
3. Surface water drainage
4. Arboricultural method statement
5. Landscaping scheme

Prior to occupation
6. Visibility splays (access)
7. Parking and turning

Compliance
8. Materials in accordance with application

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application is referred to planning committee as a parcel of land to the 

north-east of the application site proposed for car parking, turning and vehicle 
access is owned by the Vale of White Horse District Council.

Page 48

Agenda Item 9

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/V0424/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

1.2 The site is rectangular and is located between the south of Eynsham Road, 
and the north of Pinnocks Way in Botley. The site has an overall area of 690 
square metres and is accessed via Eynsham Road to the north-east. A site 
location plan is provided below:

1.3 An apartment block is situated to the north-west of the site, large residential 
dwellings are situated to the north, semi-detached dwellings are situated to the 
south which are set-within long rear gardens which extend to the east and 
west boundaries of the development site.

1.4 Planning consent is sought for the construction of an apartment block of 8 flats 
on three floors. The flats are all proposed to be affordable units consisting of 
five one bed units and three two bed units. The application follows planning 
consent (P14/V0625/FUL) granted on 25th September 2014 for 6 flats.

1.5 The building is proposed to resemble the apartment situated to the north-west. 
The property will have two and three storey blocks with a flat roof 8.3 metres in 
height. The building will have a footprint measuring 16.35 metres by 13.08 
metres. The dwelling will be designed with a light-coloured render with silver 
coloured cladding.

1.6 Vehicle access will remain via Eynsham Road with 9 car parking spaces and 
turning spaces located to the north. A 16-space cycle rack will be situated to 
the north adjacent to the east of the main car parking area. A small communal 
garden is also proposed to the south of the apartment block for use by future 
occupants. The application plans are attached at Appendix 1.

Page 49



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 A summary of the responses received is set out below. Comments made can 

be viewed in full online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk.

2.2 Cumnor Parish Council Support. The Cumnor Parish Big 
Survey, part of the emerging Cumnor 
Parish Neighbourhood Plan which 
was sent to 1,003 households, 
addressed current and future housing 
needs. Residents commented on the 
need for affordable and smaller 
homes for young single people, 
young families and elderly people. 
Approval of this proposal would meet 
the need of the residents of Cumnor 
Parish.

Oxfordshire County 
Council – Highways liaison 
officer

No objection, subject to conditions.

Housing development Support. The affordable housing team 
fully support this development as it 
will meet the needs of both individual 
and young families. The mix currently 
being provided reflects the housing 
needs survey result that was 
conducted a few years ago. And 
since the changes in the housing 
benefit reform, there has been an 
increase in demand for smaller 
bedrooms. The provision of 1 and 2 
beds will be very beneficial to the 
people in Botley. The affordable units 
will be allocated to people with a 
strong local connection to Botley and 
these properties will remain 
affordable in perpetuity.

Forestry officer – Vale No objection, subject to condition.

Drainage No objection, subject to conditions.

Waste Management No objection. 

Conservation No objection.

Countryside officer No objection.

Countryside officer No objection.

Page 50

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

Environmental protection No objection.

Neighbours – Eight letters 
of neighbouring 
representation have been 
received, consisting of 1 
neither for or against, 2 
letters of support, and 5 
letters of objection.

The 1 letter neither for or 
against the development 
stated:

 The telegraph pole adjacent to 
Eynsham Road will need 
relocating.

The 2 letters of support 
stated:

 Area needs affordable 
housing.

 Development will represent a 
good use of brownfield land.

The 5 letters of objection 
can be summarised as:

 Drainage implications.
 Inadequate parking provision.
 Loss of light and privacy.
 Overdevelopment.
 Highway safety implications.
 Poor design.
 No need for one bed flats.
 Tree implications.
 Impact on character and 

appearance of the area.

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
P14/V0625/FUL - Approved (25/09/2014).
Erection of 2x2 bed flats, 2x1 bed flats and 2x studio flats. (Re-submission of 
withdrawn application P13/V2443/FUL).

P13/V2443/FUL - Withdrawn (24/01/2014).
Erection of 2 two-bedroom maisonettes and 4 one-bedroom flats with access 
from Eynsham Road.

P91/V5004 - Refused (18/07/1991).
Erection of a 4 bedroom bungalow Site area approx. 0.18 hectares.

P89/V5011 - Refused (13/12/1989).
Erection of 2 dwelling houses and ancillary works. Site approx. 0.18ha.

P88/V2207 - Refused (16/11/1988).
Erection of 2 x 2 storey detached dwellings and garages. (Site area 0.3 acre)

Page 51

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/V0625/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P13/V2443/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P91/V5004
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P89/V5011
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P88/V2207


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

3.1 Pre-application History

P13/V0968/PEM – Pre-app decision letter sent (12/06/2013).
Pre-application for the erection of 3 affordable two-bed houses and 4 one-bed 
flats.

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 The application has been considered under the provisions of the Town and

Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. The
scale of the proposal is below relevant thresholds and the locality has no
recognised specific environmental sensitivity. Therefore, an Environmental
Statement is not required.

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
The main considerations in determining this application are;

 Principle of development
 Affordable housing
 Design and impact on the character and appearance of the area
 Impact on neighbouring amenity
 Highway safety
 Drainage and flooding implications
 Tree implications
 Other matters
 S106 legal agreement
 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
 Sustainable development

5.1 Principle of development
The settlement hierarchy set out in Core Policy 3 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 
identifies Botley as a local service centre within the Abingdon-Oxford fringe 
sub-area. Local service centres have relatively good sustainability.

5.2 Core Policy 4 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 states that there is a presumption 
in favour of sustainable development within the existing built area of market 
towns, local service centres and larger villages. The site is situated in a 
sustainable area with good communication links to local employment, services 
and facilities.

5.3 The NPPF is clear that local planning authorities should look to significantly 
boost the supply of housing in line with the principles of sustainable 
development. Core Policy 4 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 sets out the 
Council’s approach to delivering new homes and retaining the housing stock.  
New homes will be located in accordance with the settlement hierarchy outlined 
in Core Policy CP3.

Page 52

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P13/V0968/PEM


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

5.4 The development is located within an area that benefits from good public 
transport. It would create a net increase of eight additional residential units in a 
sustainable area of the Vale.

5.5 In view of the above the principle of development is therefore acceptable 
providing it accords with other relevant development plan policies.

5.6 Affordable housing
Policy CP24 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 concerns affordable housing. It 
states that any affordable housing should; be of a size and type which meets 
the requirements of those in housing need.

5.7 The Council’s affordable housing officers fully support this development as it 
will meet the needs of both individual and young families. The proposed 
housing mix of 5 one bed units and 3 two bed units reflects the housing needs 
survey that was conducted a few years ago. Furthermore, changes in housing 
benefit have seen an increase in demand for smaller bedrooms. The provision 
of 1 and 2 beds will meet the needs of local people and will be allocated to 
people with a strong local connection to the area and will remain affordable in 
perpetuity via a section 106 legal agreement.

5.8 Design and impact on the character and appearance of the 
area
The NPPF is clear that good design is indivisible from good planning, it 
attaches great importance to the design of the built environment. Good design 
is a key aspect of sustainable development and should contribute positively to 
making places better for people. It emphasises the importance to plan 
positively for the achievement of high quality and inclusive design for all 
development, including individual buildings.

5.9 The NPPF also adds that the visual appearance and the architecture of 
individual buildings are very important factors, securing high quality and 
inclusive design goes beyond aesthetic considerations. Great weight should be 
given to outstanding or innovative designs which raise the standard of design 
more generally in the area. Permission should be refused for development of 
poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the 
character and quality of an area and the way it functions.

5.10 Core Policy 37 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 states that new development must 
demonstrate high quality design that responds positively to the site and its 
surroundings, creating a distinctive sense of place through high quality 
townscape that physically and visually integrates with its surroundings. It adds 
that development must be visually attractive, and the scale, height, massing, 
and materials should be appropriate to the site and its surrounding context.

5.11 The site is situated within a low-density area of detached dwellings of various 
designs. The majority of these dwellings are set in relatively large, often well 
landscaped grounds. Large detached dwellings are located to the north, whilst 

Page 53



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

smaller semi-detached dwellings are situated to the south. A modern 
contemporary apartment block is situated to the north-west.

5.12 Neighbouring objectors have raised concerns with the proposed scale and 
mass of the proposed development and the impact it would have on the low-
density character of the surrounding area. Officers consider the proposed 
development preserves the surrounding character of the area. The building is 
set-back away from the views from Eynsham Road and has been carefully 
designed to resemble the apartment block to the north-west. The development 
also seeks to utilise the band of mature hedging which bounds the site to help 
soften the impact of development even further. This accords with Principles 
DG77 and DG81 of the Design Guide SPD.

5.13 Adequate amenity space has been provided to accord with the recommended 
guidelines for flats in line with principle DG72 of the Design Guide SPD. This 
will create defensible space for the future occupants.

5.14 In view of the above the design and appearance of the proposed development 
is in compliance with the advice contained within the NPPF, the Design Guide 
SPD and CP37 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1.

5.15 Impact on neighbouring amenity
Core Policy 37 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1, DP23 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 
2 are of importance with regard to the potential impact upon neighbouring 
amenity. Policy DP23 states that development proposals should demonstrate 
that they will not result in significant adverse impacts on the amenity of 
neighbouring uses.

5.16 The relationship of buildings to each other, their height and the positioning of 
windows can all have an impact on the privacy enjoyed by neighbouring 
properties. Furthermore, buildings close to the boundary of neighbouring 
properties can increase overshadowing or loss of daylight to neighbouring 
properties. Habitable room windows should normally be at least 12 metres 
away from the flank wall of the neighbouring property.

5.17 The proposed development has been carefully designed to mitigate any 
potential impact on neighbouring occupants. The development is situated 20.55 
metres distance from the apartments situated to the north-west. This 
represents a 0.45 metre shortfall below the recommended 21 metre distance 
between habitable room windows as stated in the Council’s Design Guide SPD. 
However, it is considered acceptable as there will be sufficient planting 
between the two apartment blocks to mitigate and potential loss in privacy. 
There is a 21 metre distance between the proposed apartment building and the 
neighbouring dwellings to the south which would preserve neighbouring privacy 
for the occupants to the south.

5.18 The impact upon neighbouring amenity will be minimal as the dwellings will be 
sufficiently distanced away from neighbouring dwellings. Furthermore, the 
scale of development is not considered to create a harmful impact towards 

Page 54



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

neighbouring occupants. It is therefore considered that the criteria contained 
within Core Policy 37 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and DP23 of the Vale of 
White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 will be adhered to.

5.19 Highway safety
The NPPF promotes sustainable transport modes, whilst seeking to ensure that 
safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users; and any 
significant impacts from the development can be mitigated. Paragraph 109 
states that development should only be prevented or refused on highways 
grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the 
residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.

5.20 Oxfordshire County Council as highway authority have reviewed the proposed 
plans raising no objections, subject to condition. Adequate car parking and 
access is available for the dwellings. Furthermore, the site is situated within a 
sustainable area with good bus links within close proximity that regularly serve 
Oxford and Abingdon.

5.21 It is therefore considered that the proposed development will comply with the 
criteria contained within Policy CP35 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 
2031 Part 1, Policy DP16 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031, Part 2, 
and the NPPF.

5.22 Drainage and flooding implications
Policy CP42 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031, Part 1 seeks to direct 
new development to areas with low probability of flooding and ensure that all 
new development addresses the effective management of all sources of flood 
risk. It is important that new development does not increase the risk of flooding 
elsewhere and improves the wider environment in terms of flood risk. 
Appropriate mitigation and management measures will be required to be 
implemented.

5.23 The site is not situated in flood zones 2 or 3. Therefore fluvial flooding is 
unlikely to occur at the site. The development is designed to effectively mitigate 
any adverse effects from surface water run-off and flooding on people, property 
and the ecological value of the local environment. Furthermore, the 
development should adequately protect groundwater resources. The drainage 
officer has requested additional surface water and foul water drainage 
information that would need to be covered via a planning condition if approved.

5.24 In view of the above the development is considered to accord with paragraph 
102 of the NPPF, Policy CP42 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031, 
Part 1 which states that development should not increase flood risk elsewhere 
and will only be permitted if it can be demonstrated that it would not have an 
impact on an area to store floodwater.

Page 55



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

5.25 Tree implications
Policy CP44 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 seeks to protect 
the key features that contribute to the nature and quality of the districts 
landscape from harmful development.

5.26 The Council’s tree officer has confirmed that the development has been sited to 
minimise the impact on the root protection areas of the existing trees. The tree 
officer considers the proposed development would protect the existing trees 
subject to a tree protection condition. It is therefore considered that the 
development accords with Policy CP44 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 
2031 Part 1.

5.27 Other matters
It is noted that the telegraph pole adjacent to Eynsham Road will need 
relocating to improve the existing access. The applicant has confirmed on the 
proposed plans that the existing electricity supply pole is to be relocated and to 
be agreed with the utility owner.

5.28 S106 legal agreement
Paragraph 56 of the NPPF advises that planning obligations should only be 
sought where they meet all of the following tests: 
I. Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
II. Directly related to the development; and
III. Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

5.29 The NPPG provides further guidance on how to apply the tests mentioned 
above and notes the following:
1. Planning obligations assist in mitigating the impact of development which
benefits local communities and supports the provision of local infrastructure.
2. Planning obligations should not be sought where they are clearly not
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms.
3. Planning obligations must be fully justified and evidenced. Where affordable 
housing contributions are being sought, planning obligations should not prevent 
development from going forward.

5.30 Policy CP7 of the Local Plan 2031, Part 1 states that development will only
be permitted where the necessary physical infrastructure and service 
requirements to support the development can be secured.

5.31 A S106 Planning agreement is required to ensure that the affordable housing 
units are allocated to people with a strong local connection to the area and 
remain affordable in perpetuity.

5.32 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
The proposed development is not CIL liable as the application is for affordable 
housing units. No market housing is proposed in this instance.

Page 56



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

5.33 Sustainable development
When considering development proposals, the Council is required to take a 
positive approach that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development contained in the National Planning Policy Framework. 

5.34 The National Planning Policy Framework places a strong emphasis on 
sustainable development. All planning applications must result in sustainable 
development with consideration being given to economic, social and 
environmental sustainability aspects of the proposal. The development will 
improve the local economy creating additional jobs during construction and the 
additional occupants will bring additional custom to local businesses. The 
environmental considerations have been assessed in terms of the impact on 
the character and appearance of the area and for the reasons given above are 
considered acceptable. Social considerations overlap those of environmental in 
terms of amenity. As these have been found acceptable the development is 
considered to constitute sustainable development.

6.0 CONCLUSION
6.1 The application has been assessed on its merits, against the requirements of 

the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1, the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 2, and 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 

6.2 The application will provide an economic and social role through construction 
employment, increased investing in the local economy and providing affordable 
housing for local people in an area with high property prices. 

6.3 In terms of the environmental role, limited harm has been identified with 
respects to localised landscape impact and loss of habitats on the site. 

6.4 There are no technical objections to the proposal, subject to appropriate 
conditions.

6.5 Overall in the planning balance, the benefits of the scheme particularly in 
providing housing towards the district’s plan-led sustainable growth will have 
local and wider benefits that are considered to outweigh the limited harm that 
has been identified. As such, the application is recommended for approval.

This decision has been considered using the relevant policies related to the
proposal. These are listed below.

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
the determination of any planning application must be made in accordance with
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The
statutory Development Plan comprises;

- The Local Plan 2031 Part 1
- The Local Plan 2031 Part 2
- The Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2031

Other material considerations include government guidance, in particular:

Page 57



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

- The National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019 as amended June 
2019) (NPPF)

- The National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG)
- National Design Guide Planning practice guidance for beautiful, enduring and 
successful places (NDDG)

- Vale of White Horse Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document
(SPD) (March 2015)

- Vale of White Horse Updated Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP)
(December 2016)

- Vale of White Horse Delivering Infrastructure to Support Development 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (June 2017)

- Building for Life 12

Other Relevant Legislation

- Human Rights Act 1998
- The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into
  account in the processing of the application and the preparation of this report.
- Equality Act 2010
- In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its
  equalities obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality
  Act 2010.

The Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies which are relevant to
the proposed development consist of:

CP01  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP03  -  Settlement Hierarchy
CP04  -  Meeting Our Housing Needs
CP07  -  Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services
CP08  -  Spatial Strategy for Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area
CP22  -  Housing Mix
CP23  -  Housing Density
CP24  -  Affordable Housing
CP33  -  Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness

The Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and Additional Sites sets out 
detailed development management policies to complement the Local Plan 2031 
Part 1. The Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 policies which are 
relevant to the proposed development consist of:

DP02  -  Space Standards
DP16  -  Access
DP23  -  Impact of Development on Amenity
DP24  -  Effect of Neighbouring or Previous Uses on New Developments
DP28  -  Waste Collection and Recycling

Page 58



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

Cumnor Parish Council is working on a neighbourhood plan. The 
neighbourhood area was formally designated on 12 January 2017. Cumnor 
Parish Council has started the process of gathering evidence and engaging with 
the local community. This is to give the plan a direction and draft policies that 
will form the neighbourhood plan. Once adopted the neighbourhood plan will 
form part of the development plan, which helps to determine planning 
applications.

Author: Andy Heron
Telephone: 01235 422600
Email: andy.heron@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 59

mailto:andy.heron@southandvale.gov.uk


ground floor plan

first floor plan

2 bed/3 person flat

1 bed/2 person flat

1 bed/1 person flat

2 bed/3 person flat

second floor plan

1 bed/ 2 person flat1 bed/ 2 person flat

2 bed/3 person flat

1 bed/1 person flat

kitchen

living

st

bath

bed 1

8
7

living

kitchen

bath

st

bed 1

elevation facing north

elevation facing south

elevation facing east elevation facing west

0 1 2 3 54 10 

50 sq m50 sq m

39 sq m

61 sq m

61 sq m

61 sq m

51 sq m

39 sq m

Land to rear of 153-155 Pinnocks Way, Botley

Oxford Community Land Trust

Proposed development - 

2018002/P02C

Aug 2018 - 1:100@A1

bed 2

st

bed 1

bath

st

kitchen

living

kitchen

living

bath

bed 1

6

5

4

bed 2bed 1

bath

st

kitchen

living

kitchen

living

bed 2bed 1

st

bath

bed 1

bath

st

kitchen

living

bed 1

bath

st

kitchen

living

2

1

3

Aluminium profile capping - Dark Grey

Composite Cladding - C51 Silver Grey 

Smooth through colour render - Colour 32123

Appendix 1

P
age 60



0 2 4 6 108 20

Land to rear of 153-155 Pinnocks Way, Botley

Oxford Community Land Trust

Proposed development - 

scheme layout

2018002/P01.H

Aug 2018 - 1:250@A2

91

89

165

89a

b

i
n

s

7

 
c

a

r
 
s

p

a

c

e

s

s

e

a

t

E
yn

sh
a
m

 R
o
a
d

vehicular access

pedestrian and 

cycle access

153

155

e

x

i
s

t
i
n

g

 
f
e

n

c

e

 
r
e

t
a

i
n

e

d

e

x

i
s

t
i
n

g

 
h

e

d

g

e

 
t
r
i
m

m

e

d

 
b

a

c

k

bin collection

point

turning space for

delivery vehicles

16 space cycle rack

8/8 stacked

2 car spaces

bollards

T1

T2

T3

T4

T5

T6

T7*

T8

T9

G1

area of landscaping extended

and regraded, rasing levels 

locally to protect tree roots

Page 61



0 10 20 30 5040 100

Land to rear of 153-155 Pinnocks Way, Botley
Oxford Community Land Trust

Proposed development - 

2018002/P03.A
Aug 2018 - 1:200@A2

site location plan

Page 62



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

APPLICATION NO. P19/V1512/FUL
SITE 5 Toynbee Close North Hinksey Oxford, 

OX2 9HW
PARISH NORTH HINKSEY
PROPOSAL Erection of a new building containing 

2no. x 2 bedroom flats to the rear of 5 
Toynbee Close, demolition of car port 
and outbuilding to facilitate access from 
Toynbee Close with provision of parking 
with bin and cycle stores. Demolition of 
existing dwellinghouse and erection of a 
2 storey building containing 1no. x 3 
bedroom flat and 2no. x 1 bedroom flats 
with provision of parking with bin and 
cycles stores (amended and amplified by 
plans received 30th August 2019 & 7th 
October 2019)

WARD MEMBER(S) Debby Hallett
Emily Smith

APPLICANT Toynbee Close Development Ltd
OFFICER Luke Veillet

RECOMMENDATION
Planning Permission is granted, subject to the following conditions; 

Standard 
1. Time limit for implementation (3 years)
2. Development to be undertaken in accordance with the approved 

plans

Pre-Commencement
3. Submission of details for existing and proposed ground levels. 

Submission of proposed slab levels, finished floor levels and ridge 
heights, with reference to fixed datum point on adjacent land

4. Full tree protection details, including arboricultural method 
statement

5. Details of soft and hard landscaping scheme, including 
implementation before first occupation

6. Foul drainage details to be provided 
7. Surface water drainage details to be provided

Prior to works above slab level 
8. Submission of photographic materials schedule 

Page 63

Agenda Item 10

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/V1512/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

Prior to occupation of dwellings/compliance 
9. Submission of details and implementation of sites external and 

internal boundary treatments
10.Provision of refuse storage in accordance with the approved plans
11.Provision of cycle storage in accordance with the approved plans
12.Provision of parking and turning areas
13.Provision of obscure windows on front buildings first floor side 

elevations
14.Provision of obscured windows on rear building first floor rear 

elevation 
15.Provision of obscure balcony screen on rear building east elevation 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 The application has been referred to the planning committee at the request of 

Councillor Emily Smith. 

1.2 The application site comprises a detached single-storey property at the end of 
a cul-de-sac within the built-up area of Botley. Neighbouring properties are 
located to the north, east and west. Vehicular access is afforded from Toynbee 
Close to the south of the site. The front of the site is at a higher ground level, 
with levels reducing substantially to the north. 

1.3 The application site is shown below in figure 1. 

Figure 1. Application Site

1.4 It is important to highlight that the site currently benefits from an extant 
planning permission (P16/V3039/FUL) to erect a two-storey dwelling to the 
rear (north) of the site. In this application, the existing dwelling is to be retained 
with an outbuilding on the west of the site demolished to make way for the 
access. It is reasonable to conclude that within the available time period left for 
commencement (approximately 11 months), conditions could be agreed to 
discharged and development started. As such, this permission represents the 

Page 64



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

site’s ‘fall-back’ position, so far as indicating the baseline of approved 
development on the site. This is a material consideration when assessing this 
application. 

1.5 The current application seeks planning permission to demolish the existing 
dwelling and erect 2 new two-storey buildings across the site. These two 
buildings will be divided up into apartments, of which 2 apartments are 
proposed in the rear building and 3 apartments in the front building, making a 
total of 5 apartments across the site. 

1.6 The rear building takes on a very similar design and siting to the previously 
approved new single dwelling under P16/V3039/FUL, albeit proposed to be 
divided into two apartments and slightly smaller. The front building follows a 
similar contemporary design to the rear building and is proposed to replace the 
existing single storey dwelling. 

1.7 The specification of the apartments are as follows;

Front building No. bedrooms GIA Floor space 
Ground floor 1x 3 bed 106m2
First floor 1x 1 bed 50m2
First floor 1x 1 bed 50m2

Rear building No. bedrooms GIA Floor space 
Ground floor 1x 2 bed 80m2
First floor 1x 2 bed 61m2

1.8 Extracts of the proposed plans are attached at Appendix 1. Notwithstanding, 
to aid comparison where relevant, the approved P16/3039/FUL site plan and 
buildings are set out below, next to the current proposal;

Page 65



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

Figure 2. Approved scheme                              Figure 3. Proposed scheme 

1.9 The scheme has also been amended during the course of the application, in 
response to neighbours and officers’ concerns. 

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 Full comments are available on the application pages on the council’s website,

www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk. A summary of comments submitted, and main 
issues highlighted is shown below;

North 
Hinksey 
Parish 
Council

Submitted scheme 
Objection;

 Overdevelopment of the site
 Access to narrow 
 Overlooking issues 
 Out of character with the area 
 Adverse traffic generation, parking and safety 

Amended scheme
 Does not overcome concerns regarding 

overdevelopment, parking, overlooking.
 Concerns regarding groundwater and drainage 

Neighbours/
other 
interested 
parties 

Submitted scheme 
Objections (10 comments);

 Loss of privacy to dwellings on Hawthorne Close (to 
the east) from first floor windows 

 Loss of sunlight in gardens at Hawthorne Close
 Unsightly structure 
 Parking adjacent to boundary causing adverse noise 

Page 66

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

and pollution issues. 
 Privacy and security compromised along eastern 

boundary 
 Light pollution 
 Shape and design of building is out of character with 

the area 
 Increase in hard standing will cause drainage issues 
 Balcony will overlook neighbouring gardens 
 Intensification of the site 
 Not enough space of fire appliances to enter the site 
 Insufficient amenity space for future occupants 
 Issues with foul drainage capacity in area. 
 Waste scheme does not comply with building regs
 Inappropriate scale and bulk for replacement front 

building 
 Significant increase in traffic generation 
 Parking will spill out into the road and turning space 
 Inappropriate design, out of character with area 
 Impact on trees 

Amended scheme
Objections (8 comments);

 Previous objections and concerns above re-iterated
 First floor flat does not have any clear glazed 

windows 
 Still overdevelopment of the plot 
 Transport statement does not account for deliveries
 Parking spaces not to standard 
 Insufficient waste management 
 Modelling for the vehicle impact seems to bed based 

on best case scenario of one car per dwelling. 
 Errors in vehicle movement assumptions in transport 

when comparing to the approved scheme 
 Tree officer’s comments state there is no space for 

planting at the front of the site 
 

Forestry 
Team 

Submitted scheme 
 The application is similar to a previously approved 

layout which was approved following extensive 
discussion relating to the trees, notably the mature
Eucalyptus beyond the western boundary of the site

 As the footprint of the proposed rear dwellings is,
essentially, the same footprint as that for which 
consent was granted, I am satisfied that the 
construction can be achieved without adversely 
affecting the trees

 Updated tree survey and arboricultural method 
statement required

Page 67



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

Amended scheme
 Trees will be lost along the frontage. If this loss is 

considered to have an adverse impact on
the character of the street scene, then an amended 
parking arrangement would be required in order for 
space to be provided for some soft landscaping.

 Detailed tree protection condition required 

Countryside 
Officer

Submitted scheme 
 No objections, subject to wild bird informative 

Amended scheme
 No objections, subject to wild bird informative 

OCC 
Highways 
Liaison 
Officer 

Submitted scheme 
Objection;

 7 car spaces are acceptable given sustainable 
location 

 Parking spaces are obstructed on some sides and do 
not meet 2.7m standard 

Amended scheme
 No objection subject to condition securing parking 

areas, prior to occupation 

Drainage 
Engineer

Submitted scheme 
 No objection, subject to drainage conditions

Amended scheme
 No objection, subject to drainage conditions

Waste 
Management 
Officer 

Submitted scheme 
 Bulk bins for rear building are obstructed and 

residents should not have to move them all the way to 
road collection point. 

 Suggest individual bin allocations for rear building 
 Collection staff will not go beyond 25m for waste 

collection (as is required by building regs

Amended scheme
 Collection point required at edge of highway

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P16/V3039/FUL - Approved (31/10/2017)

Proposed new dwelling to the rear of 5 Toynbee Close.  Alterations to 5 

Page 68

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/V3039/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

Toynbee Close.  Amended plans and additional drainage information received 
4 September 2017.

P16/V1697/PEM - (28/07/2016)
Erection of single dwelling to rear of No 5 Toynbee Close and associated 
parking provision.

3.2 Pre-application History
P18/V2556/PEM - (03/12/2018)

Erection of a two-storey building containing 2 no 2 bedroom flats to the rear of 
5 Toynbee Close with provision of access and parking.
Alterations to 5 Toynbee Close to create a two-storey building containing 1 no 
2 bedroom flat and 2 no 1 bedroom flats.

Summary of officer advice;

Overall the principle of development was acceptable. Concern about 
neighbouring impact of windows on west elevation and some design concerns. 
Overall, subject to some amendments, the scheme was likely acceptable. 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 The proposal comprises fewer than 150 dwellings and the site is less than 5ha

in size and therefore, is below the thresholds set in Schedule 2 of
the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment)
Regulations 2017. The proposal does not constitute development that requires
environmental impact assessment.

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 The main planning considerations are;

 The principle of development
 Layout, scale and design 
 Residential amenity 
 Highway safety, traffic and parking 
 Biodiversity
 Flood risk and drainage
 Waste provision
 Other matters  

5.2 The principle of development 
Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the 
local planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development 
Plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material 
considerations. Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 requires where regard is to be had to the Development Plan, applications 
for planning permission must be determined in accordance with the Plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise.

Page 69

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/V1697/PEM


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

5.3 In this case, the most relevant parts of the Development Plan are the adopted 
Local 2031 Part 1 (LPP1) and Part 2 (LPP2). The emerging Neighbourhood 
Development Plan (NDP), whilst carrying some weight, it is limited until the 
Plan is recommended to proceed to referendum and passed. 

5.4 LPP1 Policy CP01 reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development set out in the NPPF (the Framework). LPP1 Policy CP03 then 
sets out a hierarchy of settlements in the district. This policy categorises 
settlements in terms of their ability to support the most sustainable patterns of 
living and current levels of services, facilities and employment opportunities. In 
this case, policy CP03 categorises Botley as one of the districts ‘Local Services 
Centres’ representing one of most sustainable locations in the district, within 
close proximity to Oxford City.

5.5 Policy CP04 then sets out the council’s delivery strategy for additional housing. 
It details that in ‘Local Service Centres’ new housing is acceptable within the 
built areas, in line with the presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
In context of the Framework, the council has an up-to-date spatial strategy and 
over a five-year supply of housing (the district only needs to demonstrate 3 
years at this time). As such, these policies are considered consistent with the 
Framework and up-to-date, thus carry considerable weight.

5.6 It is also noted in the North Hinksey emerging NDP, the site is located in 
Character Area 5 (Elms Rise Estate). New housing development is generally 
supported, including a mix of typologies, that are in line with the character of 
the area.

5.7 With regard to the above principle policy context, re-developing the site to 
provide two apartment buildings is considered to be acceptable. The site is 
within an established built-up residential area and considered to be a highly 
sustainable location. In addition, providing apartments meets the Framework’s 
aim of proving housing for different groups in a community. As such, the 
principle of developing the site for further housing accords with the mentioned 
policy, subject to consideration of detailed matters below. 

5.8 Layout, scale and design 
Toynbee Close is short cul-de-sac, which culminates in a private parking 
courtyard at the end of the road to the east. This courtyard serves 18-24 
Chestnut Road, a building to the south east which was granted planning 
permission for 4 flats in 2005. The entrance to Toynbee Close, at the junction 
with Cedar Road, is at a higher ground level that slopes gently down towards 
the application site. Land levels then rise again to the east. This creates a 
street scene and vista, whereby the dwellings generally cascade down the 
slope, with glimpses of two-storey dwellings rising up at a higher ground level 
(Hawthorne Close) in the distance (figure 4. below). This topography has 
informed the urban form in the area and forms part of the areas character as 
highlighted in the NDP character appraisal.

Page 70



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

Figure 4 – Toynbee Close 

5.9 In Toynbee Close, there is a mixture of dwellings, all located on the north side 
of the road. These comprise of both single storey and two-storey detached and 
semi-detached units. Whilst some of the main arterial routes in the vicinity have 
more uniformity, this small cul-de-sac has a wider variety of built form. 
Notwithstanding, all are set back from the frontage, with parking and 
landscaping between the highway. They also have long and large rear 
gardens, which slope down from south to north. To the east of the application 
site there are a number of two-storey dwellings (Hawthorne Close), who’s rear 
gardens back onto the boundary of the site. These dwellings are sited at a 
higher ground level than the application site. To the north, in Cope Close, a 
small number of two-storey dwellings rear gardens also back onto the north of 
the site.

5.10 With regard to the proposed scheme, a contemporary design approach has 
been taken. The rear building is very similar to the building already approved in 
terms of its size and external appearance. Both are flat roof, two-storey 
structures and form an ‘L-Shape’ building. The building then works with the 
topography of the slope, by taking point from the lowest northern part of the 
site, to keep the ridge height down. They also are on the same footprint (as can 
be seen in figure 2 and 3 above). Even at the lowest ground level to the north, 
the building is shown to only be approximately 6.4m in height (which is virtually 
the same as previously approved). Given this siting, it is unlikely it will be seen 
from the street scene or landscape to any significant degree. In addition, given 
the proposed building is so similar in scale, layout and design terms to the ‘fall-
back’ development, officers consider its design and scale is acceptable. 

5.11 The most significant proposed building is the replacement building at the front. 
This follows the contemporary design of the rear building, seeking to rationalise 
a consistent approach across the entire site. Whilst without doubt the 
contemporary form is visually different from the existing architecture in the 
road, officers are of the view it will not have an adverse impact on the character 
and appearance of the area in this instance. The proposed two-storey building 

Page 71



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

is not entirely at odds with the surrounding built form, given there is a mixture of 
two storey buildings in the road and has mostly utilised the existing buildings 
footprint (including the rear conservatory). This ensures the building is in 
keeping with the established grain of built form in the street. The massing has 
been broken up by establishing three distinct blocks, each slightly stepped 
down as the land slopes away. This helps ensure the contemporary structure 
appears domestic in scale and the elongated building line, more consistent with 
a building that appears ‘extended’. This enables the building to sit more 
comfortably into the residential setting. The flat roof has also kept the height of 
the building low (approximately 6.1m from the south/street side) and is lower 
than neighbouring two-storey dwelling (4 Toynbee) to the east. 

5.12 In officers’ view, the culmination of these characteristics means the front 
building is not of scale or size, that would appear to be at odds surrounding 
domestic built form. It is a contemporary approach and finish, but one which will 
complement the established form, rather than detract from it. Importantly, the 
low height ensures that from street scene, being the last building in the cul-de-
sac, it follows the cascade of ridge lines, working with the topography, before 
they are increased to the north. Whilst glimpses of the building will be seen 
between buildings and existing neighbouring trees, officers consider it will not 
appear prominent or visually intrusive. As a such, officers are of the view it 
complies with relevant Development Plan policies and guidance which seek an 
appropriate and high-quality design, and positively to the character and 
appearance of a site and its surroundings. However, this is subject to securing 
details of finalised materials to ensure the development is of a high quality and 
appropriate finished; also securing details of land/building levels, to ensure the 
buildings responds correctly to the sloping topography and can effectively be 
compared to plans when built to ensure neighbour impact is limited. 

5.13 Residential Amenity
There are two matters which require consideration in this context. This is the 
impact of the scheme on neighbouring residents, and also the living conditions 
of future occupants.

5.14 In terms of the impact on neighbouring dwellings, numerous objections have 
been raised. These are largely focused around the impact on privacy from 
overlooking into adjacent spaces, as well as the overall increase in intensity of 
occupants and the possibility of resulting noise, disturbance, pollution and light. 

5.15 Officers have paid careful regard to the comments that have been submitted, 
and have visited the site and surrounding dwellings where required. Whilst the 
original scheme had significant issues by virtue of numerous windows along 
the front buildings flank elevations looking directly into neighbouring private 
spaces, this has now been overcome by the amended scheme. All first-floor 
windows on the flank elevations are now at a high level and to be obscured 
(which can be secured by condition) and have also been reduced in quantity. 
Whilst it is appreciated the rear first floor windows of the building are not 
obscured and this is a change from the existing single storey building, this is 
not an unusual relationship in residential areas. These windows face north, 
towards the rear buildings first floor windows (some 40m away) and are a 90 

Page 72



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

degree turn to the rear gardens of the eastern dwellings. Whilst this may offer 
some limited surveillance to the dwellings north-east, the oblique angle of the 
building will result in sight lines that will not be directed to private spaces or 
windows. As such, the harm will likely be limited. It is also noted a clear glazed 
window turns the corner on the front elevation. However, this will only overlook 
the front neighbouring driveway and not any habitable rooms, or private 
spaces, which cannot be seen from the public realm. In terms of the building’s 
relationship with no.4 Toynbee to the west, given the proposal uses the existing 
footprint, it does not extend significantly past their rear building line or encroach 
a 40-degree line from the closest openings (approximate) to any material 
degree. As such, on balance, officers are of the view all neighbours’ privacy will 
be maintained in context of the front building. In addition, given the height scale 
and layout already assessed, the building is unlikely to appear overbearing, or 
impact neighbouring properties light. 

5.16 In terms of the rear building, openings are mostly located in the same positions 
as on the ‘fall-back’ rear building scheme. First floor openings which face 
dwellings to the north are at high level and are proposed be obscured. As 
acknowledged in the approved scheme’s report, there is a clear glazed window 
at first floor level facing the end of the neighbour’s garden to the west (no.4 
Toynbee), but at present, this area is heavily shielded by neighbouring trees. 
Whilst these cannot be relied upon to always exist (being in the neighbour’s 
control), given the size of the garden, the occupants would still maintain an 
adequate level of privacy in their garden areas more closely associated with 
dwelling if they were to be removed. Again, given the neighbour’s dwelling 
(no.4 Toynbee) is some 47m from this building’s first floor elevation, and at a 
lower ground level, the impact overall is likely to be limited. 

5.17 On the rear building, the most significant change from the ‘fall-back’ scheme, is 
the inclusion of a balcony, which is due to serve the first-floor apartment. This 
is shown at a level which is slightly higher than the neighbouring boundary 
treatment to the west. However, an obscure balcony screen is proposed to 
protect neighbours’ privacy (which can be secured by condition), which 
mitigates the harm. Officers also note that this balcony is located approximately 
8m to 10m from the rear boundary. This means that it is mostly adjacent to a 
number of outbuildings in neighbouring gardens and areas of rear boundary 
which are obscured by neighbouring trees. As such, by virtue of the inclusion of 
the screen and position of the balcony, officers do not believe there will be a 
significant impact on the neighbouring properties.  

5.18 Regarding the increase in intensity of the site, there is likely to be some 
additional impact when compared to the fall-back scheme. There is likely to be 
more movements (both pedestrian and vehicular) in and around the site, which 
may result in more disturbance. However, with appropriate mitigation, 
particularly through upgrading the site’s boundary treatments around the 
parking areas (through condition), officers are of the view the change in impact 
is unlikely to be so significant that it would give rise to significant levels of 
disturbance that would warrant refusal. The increased intensity in vehicle 
movements will likely cause the most impact, and this issue will be assessed 
below. On balance, in officers’ view, the scheme is acceptable in this regard. 

Page 73



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

  
5.19 Regarding the future living conditions of the occupants, the proposed 

apartments meet the minimum space standards required in the Development 
Plan, based on their floor space and size of bedrooms proposed. An 
acceptable defensible external private garden space is provided for the ground 
floor three-bed apartment, with a defensible communal area for other residents 
across the site. The rear building also includes a ground floor terrace for the 
ground apartment and balcony space for the first floor. The council’s Design 
Guide does not set specific amenity space requirements for apartments, but in 
culmination, considering the space provided and number of bedrooms across 
the site, the external spaces are considered acceptable. Overall, officers are of 
the view the scheme will provide acceptable living conditions for future 
occupants and complies with the relevant policies. 

5.20 Highway safety, traffic and parking 
The proposal has included a number of unallocated parking spaces across the 
site, 3 to the front of the building and 4 in an area between the two buildings, 
central to the site. Bicycle storage and parking has also been denoted, to 
encourage sustainable forms of transport. The County Council’s Highways 
Officer has reviewed the scheme and after some adjustments, is content the 
parking provision is sufficient and there is unlikely to be any highway or safety 
issues from the scheme. He has noted that speeds in the road are likely to be 
relatively low and even where vison into the eastern adjacent court yard is not 
entirely clear, vehicle speeds in and out of this are again likely to be relatively 
low. 

5.21 Officers agree with Highways Officer’s comments. Given the sustainability of 
the site and apparent highway characteristics, it is unlikely the development will 
result in any severe highway safety or network impact. 

5.22 Notwithstanding this, officers have noted concerns from local residents which 
focus on the impact of the increased vehicle movements and intensity on the 
site. In response to this, the applicant has submitted a Highways Technical 
Note, which has analysed (using the TRICs database), the predicated flows of 
traffic, compared with the approved scheme for a new dwelling on the site. The 
Technical Note suggests that, when compared to the fall-back scheme, the 
proposal would result in an additional 5 or 6 trips across the day. The Technical 
Note has then tried to rationalise that the additional units to the rear of the site 
would actually only result in 2 - 3 trips along the access road to the rear parking 
spaces. However, officers are minded to agree with comments submitted by 
residents, that this comparison is flawed in so far as it assumes the rear 
carpark in the approved scheme would generate all the trips form the site. This 
is clearly unlikely, given the existing dwelling is likely to utilise parking to the 
front. As such, it is safer to assume that the majority of additional trips to be 
generated by the proposal is likely to be generated from the rear car park, 
given only three spaces are provided at the front. That being said, assessed as 
a whole, 5 to 6 additional trips across the site (compared to the fall-back 
scheme), across the day, is unlikely to offer a level of impact or disturbance 
that would warrant refusal on either highways or amenity grounds. This would 
be subject to upgrading the boundary treatments, as already specified. As 

Page 74



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

such, the development is acceptable in this context, and accords with the 
relevant policies. 

5.23 Biodiversity
In this context, there are number of trees in and around the site and it is clear 
the existing green space will be reduced to make way for additional 
hardstanding and built form. With regards to trees, some are proposed to be 
removed on the site and larger, higher quality trees on neighbouring land are 
proposed to be retained. The council’s Tree Officer is content with the scheme, 
subject to securing a tree protection scheme and Arboricultural Method 
Statement (by condition). He considers the important trees which contribute 
positively to the site can be secured. Notwithstanding this, it will be important 
that the scheme includes high quality landscaping and planting where 
appropriate to soften the impact of the additional form. Although it is noted the 
front parking area will not leave any room for planting, the parking area is 
relatively small, and as can be seen from figure 4, unlikely to visually prominent 
from the most important vista in the street scene. Given the location at the end 
of the road, in the corner and adjacent to the neighbouring courtyard, officers 
do not envisage this to be a significant issue. 

5.24 In terms of ecology, the council’s Countryside Officer has reviewed the scheme 
and has not identified any significant constraints. Subject to landscaping, the 
development is acceptable in this context. There are no known protected 
habitats on the site. Overall, the development complies with the relevant 
policies and is unlikely to have an adverse effect on the biodiversity of the site, 
taken as whole.

5.25 Flood Risk and drainage
Considering the topography of the site and increased built form, a quality 
drainage system will inevitably be required. Whilst the site is in Flood Zone 1, 
the scheme clearly has the potential to produce more surface water run-off. In 
addition, given the sloped nature of the site, foul drainage from the northern 
dwelling will need to be effectively managed. Whilst most of these matters fall 
under the control of Building Regulations, the council’s Drainage Engineer has 
not raised any objections, but has recommend that schemes to provide details 
of these issues are submitted. In this case, give the scale and topography of 
the scheme, it would seem appropriate to ensure the development is 
sustainable in these terms and does no result in an adverse impact on the 
environment or neighbouring properties amenity. Subject to relevant conditions, 
the scheme is considered to be acceptable and to comply with relevant 
Development Plan policies. 

5.26 Waste provision 
The scheme has been amended throughout the application in this context. The 
front building is proposed to collate their waste in bulk bin sheds to the front of 
the building and the two apartments to the rear of the building have their own 
separate provision. Whilst it’s noted that the waste officer preference would be 
for waste to be presented at the road side for collection (for all apartments), 
waste collection services will collect up driveways within 25m from the highway 
(which is also the requirement under building regulations). As such, a collection 

Page 75



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

point for the rear dwellings to move their bins within this distance is proposed, 
so that the waste can be collected. In officers’ view, this is acceptable and 
actually improves upon the approved scheme. Over all the scheme complies 
with the relevant policies in this context.

5.27 Other matters 
 Conditions – A number of pre-commencement conditions are proposed. 

These have been agreed with the applicant, as per legislative 
requirements. 

 Community Infrastructure Levey (CIL). As the scheme creates additional 
residential floor space, the CIL will apply to the development and 
relevant notice be sent upon issue of a decision.

6.0 PLANNING BALANCE AND CONCLUSION
6.1 In this case, the application site is in a sustainable location and accords with 

the councils spatial housing policies for growth. Whilst the design has taken a 
contemporary approach, having regard to the character of the area, the street 
scene and mixed building typologies in the vicinity, officers are of the view that 
there will be a limited impact on the character and appearance of the area. The 
buildings make use of the site’s topography to inform and rationalise the design 
in a positive manner to retain cascading ridge lines. In addition, the impact on 
highway safety, the highway network and living conditions for future occupants, 
is likely to be limited, subject to conditions identified where necessary.

6.2 In terms of neighbouring amenity, there will be inevitably be some impact when 
compared to the existing site. However, having regard to the predicted 
additional vehicle movements, location of the windows and the siting and 
orientation of the buildings, the impact is unlikely to be so significant that it 
would warrant refusal on this basis, particularly, when contrasted to the ‘fall-
back’ scheme. Officers consider the impacts can be effectively mitigated 
through the appropriate conditions described. This limits the impact when 
weighed in the planning balance and is outweighed by the limited impact of 
other material considerations and benefits in providing alternative housing 
options in highly sustainable location, in line with the Framework.

6.3 Having regard to the relevant policies in the Development Plan, the Framework 
and its objectives in achieving sustainable development, and relevant 
guidance, on balance, the development is considered to be acceptable and to 
be in accordance with the Development Plan. It is considered to be a 
sustainable form of development. Subject to conditions to secure necessary 
landscaping, drainage schemes and window obscurity (amongst other matters), 
it is recommended that the application is approved.

6.4 The following planning policies, guidance and legislation have been taken into 
account:

6.5 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies (LPP1);
CP01  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP03  -  Settlement Hierarchy
CP04  -  Meeting Our Housing Needs

Page 76



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

CP04A  -  Meeting our Housing Needs
CP08  -  Spatial Strategy for Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-
Area
CP08A  -  Additional Site Allocations for Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford 
Fringe Sub-Area
CP22  -  Housing Mix
CP23  -  Housing Density
CP33  -  Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP40  -  Sustainable Design and Construction
CP42  -  Flood Risk
CP44  -  Landscape
CP46  -  Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity

6.6 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 policies (LPP2);
DP02  -  Space Standards
DP16  -  Access
DP23  -  Impact of Development on Amenity
DP28  -  Waste Collection and Recycling

6.7 Neighbourhood Development Plan (NDP);
Examination of the North Hinksey NDP has now concluded. The district council 
now has to consider each of the examiner's recommendations, before making 
the final decision on whether the plan should proceed to a referendum. Whilst 
some weight can be attached to the Plan, it is considered to be limited at this 
time, as the plan may change or not pass referendum stage. Notwithstanding, 
regard has been had to the following relevant NDP policies;

HS1 – Characteristics of new housing
HS2 – Low rise housing design
HS3 – Housing density
HS4 - Flexibility, Future-Proofing, and Sustainable Design
HS5 – Balance of housing types
TR1 – Cyclists, Pedestrians & Public Transport
TR2 – Parking, Access and Electric Vehicle Charging

6.8 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)
Design Guide – March 2015

6.9 Other material documents/considerations
 National Planning Policy Framework 2019 (NPPF)
 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)
 North Hinksey Parish Character Assessment 2018

6.10 Other Relevant Legislation
Due regard has been had to the following legislation;

 Community & Infrastructure Levy Legislation

Page 77



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

 Human Rights Act 1998
 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
 Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)

(England) Order 2015 (amended)

Case officer: Luke Veillet 
Email: planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
Tel: 01235 422600

Page 78



REV DATE DESCRIPTION

-- -- --

Date

Revision

TED Studio Ltd 2017Original size 50mm @ A3

Job Number

Description

Scale

Status

Drawing Number

Drawn By

Project

Client

SETTING OUT NOTE

It is the responsibility of the Contractor to check

all setting out information (levels, dimensions,

co-ordinates, etc) indicated on this drawing for

the whole of the works prior to commencement

of the works.  The Architect shall be notified of

any discrepancies and no works shall be carried

out until instruction has been issued in writing.

A-02-100 P-19310

JUN 19TEOn Sheet

Planning

Location and Block Plan

5 Toynbee Close

Albright Dene Ltd

Appendix 1

P
age 79

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
TOYNBEE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
45a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2019. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
18 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
TOYNBEE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2019. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
Location Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Block Plan



g
a
r
d

e
n

p
r
iv

a
t
e

g
a
r
d

e
n

o

v
e
r
h

e
a
d

 
c
a
b

l
e

c
h

a
i
n

l
i
n

k
 
f
e
n

c
e
 
(
h

t
 
1
.
2
0
)

s
p

r
e
a
d

 o
v
e
r
h

a
n

g

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

r
in

g
 t

r
e
e

s
p

r
e
a
d

 o
v
e
r
h

a
n

g

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

r
in

g
 t

r
e
e

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

 b
o

u
n

d
a
ry

 lin
e

c
o

n
ife

r h
e
d

g
e
 (h

t 2
.5

0
)

e
n

d
 o

f
 e

d
g

in
g

 s
t
o

n
e
s

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 d

e
t
e
r
m

in
e

a
s
h

0
.2

0

Date

Revision

TED Studio Ltd 2017Original size 50mm @ A3

Job Number

Description

Scale

Status

Drawing Number

Drawn By

Project

Client

SETTING OUT NOTE

It is the responsibility of the Contractor to check

all setting out information (levels, dimensions,

co-ordinates, etc) indicated on this drawing for

the whole of the works prior to commencement

of the works.  The Architect shall be notified of

any discrepancies and no works shall be carried

out until instruction has been issued in writing.

A-02-100 B19310

AUG 19TE1:200@A2

Planning

Site Layout

5 Toynbee Close

Albright Dene Ltd

Page 80

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
T O Y N B E E     C L O S E

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
T22

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Existing conifer to be removed, proposed new fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
and replacement hedging to LPA approval

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
turning head

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
bins

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
proposed raised ground to parking spaces.

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
NOTE: Parking provision and turning

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
 space for both units to be SUDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
 compliant drained.

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
outbuilding to be removed shown dotted

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
bins

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
bikes

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
shed to be removed shown dotted

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
T19

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
T17

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
T16

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
existing carport to be removed shown dotted

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
dropped kerb to be approved by and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
adjusted in accordance with OCC standards.

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
Communal Space (125 sqm)

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
Defensible rear garden space for ground floor flat

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
45sqm

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
Bin&bike store at lower level

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
access from bin/cycles to driveway at front

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
visitors cycle stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Bin collection point

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
gate from private area onto the communal garden space - near visitor cycles

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
First floor terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
12.5 sqm

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
Ground floor terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
30 sqm

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
low post and rail fence along driveway.

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
bins

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
Communal Space (81 sqm)



19462

Date: Drawn By:

Revision:Status:

Title:

Client:

Project Name:

Drawing Number:

Scale:100mm @ A3

Project Notes: Project Number:

1 : 200

Site Sections

Albright Dene Ltd

5 Toynbee Close

A-04-100 Aug 2019

Planning

TE

19310

Toynbee Close

Southern building 

Northern Building

Hawthorn Close

4 Toynbee Close 

P
age 81



Date: Drawn By:

Revision:Status:

Title:

Client:

Project Name:

Drawing Number:

Scale:100mm @ A3

Project Notes: Project Number:

1 : 100 A

Front Building Elevations

Albright Dene Ltd

5 Toynbee Close

A-05-101 Aug 19

Planning

TE

19310

East Elevation

South (Street) Elevation West Elevation

North Elevation

0m 1 2 4 10m3 5

P
age 82



UP

DN

28
50

4550

47
75

2950

2750

38
20

42
70

2750

48
00

2750

Date: Drawn By:

Revision:Status:

Title:

Client:

Project Name:

Drawing Number:

Scale:100mm @ A3

Project Notes: Project Number:

1 : 100 A

Front Building - Floor Plans

Albright Dene Ltd

5 Toynbee Close

A-03-100 Aug 19

Planning

TE

19310

Front Building
Ground Floor Flat
3b 106sqm

Front Building
First Floor Flats
2 x 1b 50sqm

Kitchen/Living/Dining

Bed

Bed
Bed

Bath

Ensuite

Kitchen/Living/Dining

Bed

Bath

Bath

Bed

Kitchen/Living/Dining

0m 1 2 4 10m3 5

Opaque Glazed 
Window

High level
obscure glazing

High level
obscure glazing

High level
obscure glazing

High level
obscure glazing

High level
obscure glazing

P
age 83



Date: Drawn By:

Revision:Status:

Title:

Client:

Project Name:

Drawing Number:

Scale:100mm @ A3

Project Notes: Project Number:

1 : 100 B

Rear Building Elevations

Albright Dene Ltd

5 Toynbee Rear Building

A-05-103 Aug 19

Planning

TE

19310

South Elevation

North Elevation

East Elevation

West Elevation

2.5m conifer hedge shown dotted

existing 1.9m fence shown dotted

High level obcure windows

1.8m opaque
safety glass
screen

P
age 84



UP

DN29
72

4467

4367

27
50 34

72

4367

22
50

4000

Date: Drawn By:

Revision:Status:

Title:

Client:

Project Name:

Drawing Number:

Scale:100mm @ A3

Project Notes: Project Number:

1 : 100 B

Rear Building Floor Plans

Albright Dene Ltd

5 Toynbee Rear Building

A-03-102 Aug 19

Planning

TE

19310

Rear Building
Ground Floor Flat
2b 80 sqm

Rear Building
First Floor Flat
2b 61 sqm

Bed

Bed

Bath

Kitchen/Living/
Dining

Bed

bed

Bath

Kitchen/Living/
Dining

Terrace

Terrace

0m 1 2 4 10m3 5

Ensuite Ensuite

P
age 85

sav_turnerl
Distance Measurement
10.00 m

sav_turnerl_1
Area Measurement
86.85 sq m

sav_turnerl_2
Area Measurement
75.01 sq m



REV DATE DESCRIPTION

A 26.09.2019 Bin Stores revised

Date

Revision

TED Studio Ltd 2017Original size 50mm @ A3

Job Number

Description

Scale

Status

Drawing Number

Drawn By

Project

Client

A-03-300 A19310

JUN 19TE1:100 @ A3

Planning

Plans and Elevations

Bin and Bike Stores

5 Toynbee Close

Albright Dene Ltd

Plan

Bin Stores to the rear

Elevation

Cycle Store to the rear

Plan

Elevation

Cycle Store to the front

Plan

Elevation

P
age 86



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

APPLICATION NO. P19/V1445/FUL
SITE Army Rowing Club Wilsham Road 

Abingdon, OX14 5LD
PARISH ABINGDON
PROPOSAL Demolish existing detached club room 

and store building. Form new detached 
club room and rowing boat store
(Amended drawings to show revised 
boat store, club room and car 
parking/cycle provision received 1 
October 2019).
(Revised flood risk assessment received 
17 October 2019)

WARD MEMBER(S) Samantha Bowring
Neil Fawcett

APPLICANT Army Rowing Club Association
OFFICER Susannah Mangion

RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to the 
following conditions:

Standard
1. Commencement 3 years - Full Planning Permission
2. Approved plans

Prior to commencement
3. Surface Water Drainage
4. Foul Drainage
5. Landscaping details
6. Flooding - details of the proposed ‘Hit and Miss Wall’
7. Submission of details – construction management plan

Prior to use or occupation
8.  Flooding – measures in accordance with Flood Risk Assessment
9.  HY7 - Car Parking
10. HY20 - Bicycle Parking
11. Materials in Accordance with Application

Page 87

Agenda Item 11

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/V1445/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

Informatives
12. Watercourses

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 The application comes to committee at the request of the Planning Manager.

1.2 The application site lies within Flood Zone 3 on the western bank of the River 
Thames to the south of Abingdon Town Centre. The site lies north of residential 
development at Kingfisher Close and to the east of residential development on 
Wilsham Road.  Immediately to the south is Abingdon Rowing Club and further 
to the south beyond Kingfisher Close is the Abingdon School Boat Club. 
Immediately to the north is Abingdon Sailing Club. The east side of the river is 
undeveloped floodplain land. 

1.3 The site was formerly used by the RAF Abingdon Sailing Club but it was 
transferred to the Army when RAF Abingdon became Dalton Barracks.

1.4 A site location plan is below:

Page 88



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

1.5 At present there are two timber buildings on the site which are in poor condition 
and the clubroom building is understood to be no longer safe to use.  An 
additional timber storage building located near the site entrance is understood to 
have recently been removed but its concrete base remains. Access is taken via 
an existing access on Wilsham Road. The site is bounded by a hedge along the 
road frontage. Informal parking on grass is currently available. Any boats 
currently stored on site are stored on racks outside.

1.6 It is proposed to erect a new clubroom building to be sited in the same location 
as the current building and a rowing boat store to provide tiered storage for 8-
person, 4-person and 2-person rowing boats. The proposed double gabled 
boathouse building includes a service block, providing changing areas and toilet 
facilities, and includes facilities for disabled persons. Use of the facilities is likely 
to be mainly seasonal from April to October due to better weather and river 
conditions for rowing.

1.7 The proposed boathouse building is a steel-framed structure with timber 
cladding and grey coloured roof sheeting. The building’s dimensions are 25m x 
10m with a ridge height of 5.1m and eaves height of 3.4m. The club room 
building is proposed to be timber clad building of 7.6m x 6.3m with a grey-
coloured tiled roof with a ridge height of 4.5m and eaves height of 3.6m and it 
will be accessed via a ramp to allow disabled access. Each building benefits 
from flow-through voids and the finished floor level of the clubhouse and the 
wc/changing area within the boathouse are to be above flood level.  

1.8 Parking for 12 vehicles including 1 disabled space and 6 bicycle storage stands 
is proposed on site: 8 of the parking spaces are to be provided on grass with 
pvc ground stabilisation mesh and 4 spaces will be provided on an existing 
concrete area.

1.9

1.10

Amended plans and a revised Flood Risk Assessment were submitted to 
address officers’ concerns regarding the design and appearance of the building, 
to ensure the layout of parking spaces conformed to standard dimensions, and 
to address the initial objection of the Environment Agency. 

Extracts from the plans are attached at Appendix 1.

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
Abingdon Town Council Objection:

The Town Council did not object to the original 
application although expressed concern about 
the level of activity at the site and neighbouring 
sites and the impact on residents due to traffic 
movements, parking and noise. Army may wish 
to review their plans and consider relocating 
away from residential properties.
Objection to amended information on grounds 
of:

 Overdevelopment and inappropriate 

Page 89



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

development – does not respond 
positively to the site and surroundings in 
terms of scale, height and massing

 Adverse impact on neighbours from 
noise

 Generates additional traffic with 
inadequate provision for parking and 
turning.

If approved recommend conditions to:
1) partition and secure site from Abingdon 

Rowing Club
2) Restrict hours to 7am until sunset plus 

30 mins to mitigate impact on neighbours

Neighbours 
Support (5)

Improves facilities and allows better access to 
the sport for soldiers. Aids soldiers’ fitness. Is 
required for safe training facilities for grass-
roots and elite athletes. Current buildings are 
an eyesore and need replacing. Will improve 
appearance of site.  Allows for adequate 
storage of equipment. 

Neighbours: 
Object (11) plus letter from 
residents’ group
 

Objections can be summarised as follows:
 Proposal for National Army Rowing Club 

who only plan to use site infrequently 
 Boats should be stored off-site
 Kingfisher canoe club were removed 

from using site and site has since been 
used very little

 Priority should be given to local groups 
to use the site

 A multi-use facility for local use would be 
preferable since riverside access is so 
limited

 Traffic and parking concerns including 
on-road parking 

 Wilsham Road is part of the Hanson Way 
and heavily used by cyclists so 
inconsiderate parking creates danger

 Concerned the proposed large building 
reduces on-site parking

 Army should continue to allow Abingdon 
Rowing club to park on-site to reduce 
pressure on on-road parking as many 
Abingdon Rowing club members are not 
local

 At 5.1m height building will be taller than 

Page 90



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

adjoining building at Abingdon Rowing 
club 

 Existing building should be removed but 
replacment is too large and will have 
industrial/warehouse appearance

 Building too large for site 
 Concern about height and footprint  of 

clubroom building
 Revised design does not improve visual 

amenity
 Inappropriate facility at residential 

location
 Additional vegetation should be planted 

on site as it has become depleted 
 Conditions should limit use to daytime 

hours on weekdays only, no sub-letting 
including of clubroom and prevent 
parking on Wilsham Road.

 Terms of lease should be reconsidered 
as rent is minimal

 Inadequate planning consultation
 Army claim pre-application discussions 

with residents were not objected to but 
this is incorrect 

 Both Army and Abingdon Rowing club 
have allowed others to use sites contrary 
to lease (e.g. University colleges)

 Concerns slipway has been removed

Environment Agency No objection subject to planning condition to 
undertake development in accordance with the 
revised FRA dated September 2019.

Initial objection to first Flood Risk Assessment 
withdrawn.

Forestry Team (Vale of 
White Horse) 

No objection subject to a condition to require 
the management of the vegetation on site. The 
proposed removal of two Maples further into the 
site to facilitate the siting of the boat store is not 
harmful to visual amenity.

Vale - Highways Liaison 
Officer (Oxfordshire 
County Council) 

No objection subject to conditions for car and 
bicycle parking.

Initial objection due to insufficient information  
Drainage - (South&Vale) No objection subject to pre-commencement 

surface water, foul water and Hit and Miss Wall 
and all IPP measures conditions 

Leisure No observations

Page 91



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

Sport England No observations
Contaminated land No objection

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P19/V0515/PEM - Other Outcome (08/04/2019)

Replace existing detached club room, remove existing store building and 
construct a new rowing boat store.

P06/V1030 - Approved (15/08/2006)
Erection of a canoe equipment store

P94/V1699/O - Approved (24/03/1994)
New build development for the Abingdon Rowing Club, to accommodate also 
the Kingfisher and Pathfinders Canoe Club. (Site area approx. 0.4 hectares).
Abingdon Rowing Club, Wilsham Road, Abingdon, Oxon.

P93/V1458/O - Refused (02/12/1993)
Change of use of land to residential and the erection of a single dwelling house, 
together with access improvements to existing riverside facilities.
Land adjacent to Wilsham Road, opposite 2 Townsend and 32-39 Wilsham 
Road, Abingdon, Oxon.

P83/V0161 - Approved (09/04/1984)
Erection of a replacement boat house.

P80/V0159 - Approved (12/11/1980)
Erection of a pre-cast 'Batley' type garage for use as a secure tool and boat 
equipment store.

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 The proposed development is neither of a sufficient scale, nor within a location 

of sufficient environmental sensitivity, to require an EIA.

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 The relevant planning considerations are considered to be the following:

 Principle of the development
 Flood risk
 Design, appearance and impact on character
 Leisure and sport facilities
 Neighbour impact
 Highways and access considerations
 Trees and landscaping
 CIL
 Other 

5.2 Principle of the development 
The site is currently used by the Army Rowing Club and the agent has advised it 

Page 92

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/V0515/PEM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P06/V1030
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P94/V1699/O
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P93/V1458/O
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P83/V0161
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P80/V0159


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

is used by all army personnel who learn to row, continue rowing as a sport and 
so as to train for regattas and competitions. It is understood to be used by 
soldiers from local units including Dalton Barracks, Shrivenham, Bicester and 
Didcot as well as nationally and the new buildings will allow better disabled 
access and facilities.

5.3 This site benefits from an existing leisure use and the proposal concerns the 
erection of new buildings and associated works only. 

5.4 Policy CP3 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 defines the settlement hierarchy for 
the district and confirms that development should be focused within the Market 
Towns due to the sustainable nature of these locations. Paragraph 85 a) of the 
NPPF recognises the role of towns in providing sites for leisure uses.  
Therefore, the principle of the redevelopment of the site for sport and leisure 
purposes is acceptable.

5.5 Flood risk
The site is within Flood Zone 3b the functional floodplain, an area with a 
probability of flooding of 1 in 20 years. The proposed use is water compatible, 
but to ensure compliance with planning policy the development needs to ensure 
the development will not increase flood risk elsewhere and that the flood risks 
associated with the proposal can be managed satisfactorily.

5.6 The buildings are designed in such a way that the ground floor of the boat 
house will be allowed to flood and water will be allowed to flow under the club 
room building via the provision of opening voids, thereby not having a 
detrimental impact on flood storage levels. The club room and wc/changing 
areas have been kept higher than the flood level, so the facilities are not 
damaged. 

5.7 During times of flood, the site would not be in active use as it would not be a 
safe time for rowing activity. 

5.8 Design appearance and impact on character of area (adjoining River 
Thames)
Paragraph 127 of the NPPF provides that planning decisions should ensure 
development is well-designed.  Policy CP37 states that proposals for new 
development will be required to be of a high-quality design that responds 
positively to the site and its surroundings. Policy CP44 seeks to ensure 
development is successfully integrated into the landscaped character of the 
area. The site adjoins the River Thames and policy DP30 requires that 
development will only be permitted where it would not harm the setting of the 
watercourse and a construction management plan should be agreed to ensure 
there is no harm to the watercourse. 

5.9 The boathouse building is proposed to be positioned approximately parallel to 
boathouse on the adjoining Abingdon Rowing Club site. The revised boathouse 
building design proposes a simple timber clad structure with double gabled roof 
to better reflect the riverside vernacular.  Although local concerns have been 
raised in respect of the scale of the boathouse building, this has been dictated 

Page 93



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

by the need to provide sufficient capacity for on-site boat storage together with 
adequate changing facilities. Storing the boats on-site will reduce traffic 
movements associated with the development as the boats would no longer need 
to be driven to and from the site for training sessions.

5.10 The timber clad clubhouse building has a simple pitched roof and is of a scale 
suited to its location, its height having to take into account the need for flood 
water to flow beneath the finished floor level.  Whilst local concerns have been 
expressed regarding the appearance of the boathouse building, officers 
consider the revised design and materials of the proposed building reflects a 
traditional boathouse appearance and is suited to the riverside location and the 
rowing club use of the site.

5.11 Planning conditions are proposed to ensure the materials accord with the 
submitted details and to require the submission of a construction management 
plan so as to ensure the construction process is not harmful to the river. 

5.12 Leisure and sports facilities
Access to both leisure and sports facilities is important in allowing the military 
community to participate in sporting activities and contribute towards their health 
and well-being. It is important for military personnel to maintain physical fitness 
and the Armed Forces consider sport makes a significant contribution to 
operational effectiveness, fighting spirit and personal development. It also plays 
an important part in Service life, including recruiting and retaining staff as it 
provides a balance in the lives of personnel. Sport also supports the recovery 
and rehabilitation of wounded, injured and sick personnel. 

5.13 It is noted that some concerns have been expressed that the site should be 
made available for use by local sports groups and that the Army Rowing Club 
very seldom uses the site. However, the site is already used by and leased to 
the Army Rowing Club and no change of use or lessee is being considered. The 
neighbouring Abingdon Sailing Club and Abingdon Rowing Club provide leisure 
facilities for local residents.

5.14 Neighbour impact
Policy DP23 states, ‘Development proposals should demonstrate that they will 
not result in significant adverse impacts on the amenity of neighbouring uses’.

5.15 Whilst the built form on site is proposed to increase, the height and siting of the 
buildings has been designed to limit the impact on the visual amenity of 
neighbouring residents and the limited visual impact of the development would 
not warrant the refusal of planning permission. 

5.16 It is noted that neighbouring residents have expressed concerns about noise 
from use of the site and from inconsiderate parking on the local roads. However, 
there are no proposals to intensify the use of the site. After the completion of the 
construction works, the alterations to the built form on site should not give rise to 
increased noise or disturbance to neighbouring residents. However, it is also 

Page 94



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

noted that concerns have been raised that the site is only used by the Army on 
a very limited basis. Therefore, the noise concerns may be due to the more 
regular use of neighbouring facilities. 

5.17 With regard to parking, it is understood that parking occurs on Wilsham Road in 
order to walk into the town centre, increasing the pressure on parking in the 
locality. However, it is likely that the provision of the larger boathouse will 
reduce traffic implications as boats will be stored on site and will not regularly 
need to be transported to and from site for training sessions. It will also 
formalise on-site parking facilities, allowing for improved on-site parking. 
Officers consider the proposed development will not give rise to any increased 
harm to the amenity of neighbouring residents. 

5.18 Highways and access considerations 
The site benefits from an existing access and use. The proposal formalises 
arrangements for vehicle and cycle parking on site. There is no in-principle 
objection to the rationalisation of the parking arrangements on site and the 
proposed vehicle and cycle parking spaces accord with adopted standards. 
Panning conditions are proposed to ensure the parking provision is laid out in 
accordance with the plans.

5.19 Trees and landscaping
The hedge and tree at the site frontage are to be retained, which will help to 
soften the impact of the development. The Tree Officer considers the removal of 
two smaller trees further into the site is acceptable as they do not make a 
significant contribution to visual amenity. It is proposed that a landscaping 
condition be imposed to ensure the retained vegetation on site is managed 
effectively to benefit the visual amenity of the area. 

5.20 Community Infrastructure Levy
The Council adopted the Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule 
2017 (CIL) on 1 November 2017. A wholly D2 Use Class development, as 
proposed, would not be CIL liable. Details of the proposed charging schedule 
and all the relevant forms can be found on our website at 
hhhp://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/cil.

5.19 Other
The council owns the site, which is leased to the applicant. These facts are not 
material considerations to the planning application. 

6.0 CONCLUSION AND PLANNING BALANCE
6.1 The proposal is to improve an existing facility which has recognised benefits and 

requires a location adjacent to the river. It is considered that the proposal will 
not lead to a material intensification of use, and may reduce some aspects of 
the impact of the facility due to the improved amount of boat storage. The 
design is acceptable, whilst no harm is identified to either neighbours’ amenities 
or highway safety. Overall, the weighing of material considerations is in favour 
of approval, and the proposal is considered to accord with relevant policies of 
the development plan and with the NPPF.

Page 95



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 4 December 2019

The following planning policies have been taken into account:

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies:
CP01  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP03  -  Settlement Hierarchy
CP08  -  Spatial Strategy for Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP42  -  Flood Risk
CP44  -  Landscape
DP16  -  Access

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 policies:
DP23  -  Impact of Development on Amenity
DP30  -  Watercourses
DP34  -  Leisure and Sports Facilities

Vale of White Horse Design Guide (March 2015)

National Planning Policy Framework, 2019

Planning Practice Guidance

Equality Act 2010
The application has been assessed against section 149 of the Equality Act. It is 
considered that no recognised group will suffer discrimination as a result of the 
proposal.

Human Rights Act, 1998
The application has been assessed against Articles 1 and 8. The impact on 
individuals has been balanced against the public interest and the officer 
recommendation is considered to be proportionate.

Author: Susannah Mangion
Email: susannah.mangion@southandvale.gov.uk
Tel: 01235 422600 

Page 96

mailto:susannah.mangion@southandvale.gov.uk


Appendix 1

P
age 97



P
age 98


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 P18/V1704/FUL - J Curtis and Sons Ltd Thrupp Lane, Radley,  Abingdon, OX14 3NG
	Appendix 1

	8 P19/V0626/FUL - Oakley Equestrian Centre, Faringdon Road A417, Field opposite Goosey Lane, Faringdon, SN7 8PE
	Appendices
	Elevations Proposed Stables drwgno OEC PP 4B 2
	Floor Plan and Elevation Mobile Home Proposed drwgno OCE-MH-5R
	Floor Plans proposed drwgno OEC PP 4A 2
	Landscape and planting plan drwgno OEC-LP-1


	9 P19/V0424/FUL - Land to the rear of 89A-93 Eynsham Road, Botley, Oxford, OX2 9DG
	Appendices
	Floor Plans and Elevations Proposed drwgno OCLT-P02C
	Scheme Layout drwgno OCLT-P01H
	Site Location Plan drwgno OCLT-P03A


	10 P19/V1512/FUL - 5 Toynbee Close, North Hinksey, Oxford, OX2 9HW
	Appendices
	1. Location Plan and Block Plan drwgno A-02-100 Rev P
	Sheets and Views
	A-02-100


	2.Site Layout drwgno A-02-100 B
	Sheets and Views
	A-02-100


	3. Site Section drwgno A04-100
	Sheets
	A-04-100 - Site Sections


	4. Elevations Front Building Proposed drwgno A05-101A
	Sheets
	A-03-100 - Front Building - Floor Plans
	A-05-101 - Front Building Elevations
	A-05-102 - Perspectives


	5. Floor Plans Front Building Proposed drwgno A03-100A
	Sheets
	A-03-100 - Front Building - Floor Plans
	A-05-101 - Front Building Elevations
	A-05-102 - Perspectives


	6. Elevations Rear Building Proposed drwgno A05-103B
	Sheets
	A-03-102 - Rear Building Floor Plans
	A-05-103 - Rear Building Elevations
	A-05-104 - Rear Building Perspectives


	7. Floor Plans Rear Building Proposed drwgno A03-102A
	Sheets
	A-03-102 - Rear Building Floor Plans
	A-05-103 - Rear Building Elevations
	A-05-104 - Rear Building Perspectives


	8. Bin Cycle Store drwgno A-03-300 A
	Sheets and Views
	A-03-300




	11 P19/V1445/FUL - Army Rowing Club, Wilsham Road,  Abingdon, OX14 5LD
	Appendices
	Elevation and Floor Plan Proposed drwgno 05E
	Site Plan drwgno 04B



